‘HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
' REGULAR MEETING '

March 28, 2019
7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA

OAKLAND, CA
 AGENDA
1. CALL TO ORDER
2, ROLL CALL
3.. CONSENT ITEMS
4. OPEN FORUM
5. OLD BUSINESS
A. Staff Recommendation Re Board Aitendance Policy -
B. Request for Increase in RAP Fee
C. RAP Annual Report
D. Discussion of Ad Hoc Committee

6. NEW BUSINESS
~A. Appeal Hearings in:
i L17-0241, Faussner v. Tenants
i T18-0012, Edwards v. Bay Apartment Advisors
iii. L17-0231, Arms v. Tenants
B. Revisions to Regulations for the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance
. to Eliminate Exemption Procedure for Owner-Occupied Duplexes
and Triplexes ‘
6.  SCHEDULING AND REPORTS
7. ADJOURNMENT

Accessibility. This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request
disability-related accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or

1

000001



Spanish interpreter, please email sshannon@oaklandnet.com or call (610) 238-
3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five working days before the
meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a
courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities. '

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones
relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en espariol,
Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por favor envié un correo
electronico a sshannon@oaklandnet.com o llame al (510) 238-3715 o0 711 por lo
menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunién. Se le pide de favor que no use
perfumes a esta reunion como cortesia para los que tienen sensibilidad a los
productos quimicos. Gracias.

BSEECHBHARE. TEREHENRME, FiE mUITE,

Wi EE R R, BB EAITEXEE sshannon@oaklandnet.com
BLEE (510) 238-3715 B 711 California relay

service, SEMABRERER - SMBUEECER TR,

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals: The City of Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified persons
with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence
of an apparel item, apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably
establish that the animal does, in fact, perform a function or task that you cannot
otherwise perform.

If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must
provide documentation on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional,
not more than one year old, stating that you have a mental health-related
disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to your mental
health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave
properly in public. An animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or
aggressive manner (barks, growls bites, jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will
- be removed.

000002



HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
ATTENDANCE POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Procedure

a. Staff will send out member availability schedule for each quarter 30 days in
advance of the next quarter;

b. Board member will respond in writing within one week;

c. Staff will send out the attendance schedule for the next quarter one week
before the next quarter starts;

d. Board member will find a replacement if unable to attend a scheduled board
meeting’

e. If Board member is unable to find a replacement, notify staff one week prior to
next board meeting if unable to attend with reason for absence;

f. Staff will make effort to find replacement.

2. Board attendance will be published on a quarterly basis
Additional Policy Recommendations Requiring Changes to Rent Ordinance

1. Regular Board Members (REQUIRES CHANGE TO THE RENT ORDINANCE)
a. Regular board members may not miss more than 50% of all regular full board
meetings in a six month period, regardless of whether they are excused.

2. Alternate Board Members (REQUIRES CHANGE TO THE RENT ORDINANCE)
a. Alternate board members must be available to attend 50% of all panel
meetings in a six month period; participation in a full board meeting counts
toward the 50% panel requirement.

3. Removal of Board Member (REQUIRES CHANGE TO THE RENT ORDINANCE
TO MODIFY FOR CAUSE)

a. Removal of a board member for attendance may be recommended by staff to
the Board;

b. Board may recommend removal of a board member for cause to the city
council;

c. Removal of a board member is governed by Section 8.22.040(B)(2) of the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance Section 601 of the City Charter states that members of
board may be removed for cause, after hearing, by the affirmative vote of at
least six members of the city council.

000003



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS

CITY OF OAKLAND
OFFICE OF THE CITY AUDITOR

Vi

S =

SIe\/E & GOLDMAN scHooL
PUBLIC POLICY

CITY OF OAKLAND UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA BERKELEY

JASONY. SIU
May 5, 2017

The author conducted this study as part of the program of professional education at the Goldman
School of Public Policy, University of California at Berkeley. This report is submitted in partial
fulfillment of the course requirements for the Master of Public Policy degree. The judgments and
conclusions are solely those of the author, and are not necessarily endorsed by the Goldman School of
Public Policy, by the University of California or by any other agency.

000004



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 1

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

With gratitude, I am thankful for the fine mentorship from Professor Larry
Rosenthal of the Goldman School of Public Policy. He has been an instrumental

resource in my research, always pushing me to challenge myself and providing me
with invaluable counsel.

I am indebted to my classmates in Advanced Policy Analysis Seminar for their
constructive feedback and advice. I am further grateful to all whom I interviewed
for this project. Your insights are greatly appreciated.

My deepest gratitude goes out to City Auditor Brenda Roberts and her staff for

making this project possible. Thank you for your passion and service to the City of
Oakland.

000005



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...ccootimiiiiiieiietecee et seee e eveenee e 3
I FINDINGS: OAKLAND ......cocoviminiiiniinee e eese e 4
II. BENCHMARKINGS ¢ CASE STUDIES ......c..ccoovvvevvveriiiennnn, 7
A. SAN JOSE oottt 7
B. BerRElOY ...cieoiiiiiiieieee et 9
C. SACTAIMEINIEO.....viiiiiiiiiieeirenreieretere et sresaerteesraeesreereere s 10
III. RECOMMENDATIONS ......cooootiiiiieetece ettt e 11
A. Training and Best Practices .........c.cccevvvvvvveveevveivineneeeeenen. 11
B. Board Support and Recruitment ..........cccccoevvvevevvvvnnnneeenrnnen. 13
C. Compliance and Accountability.........cccccoovvvvviviennreieeeinrinnenss 14
D. Acknowledgement of Boards and Commissions .................. 17
E. Restructuring and Consolidation ...........cccoevvvvevevvvereeeennneen. 17
METHODOLOGY ....cocooriiiiminienientenieietnteseetseneeeeere et ereeereensereensenens 20
APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: Statutory Background on Oakland’s Boards and Commissions
APPENDIX B: Video Training Questions for Boards and Commissions in Berkeley
APPENDIX C: Accountability Measures for Oakland’s Boards and Commissions
APPENDIX D: San Jose’s Boards and Commissions Consolidation Plan

APPENDIX E: San Jose’s Sample Annual Report Template

000006



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Oakland conducts many of its businesses through boards and commissions. These
forums provide an opportunity for residents to participate in the policymaking
process in an open democratic government. For citizens to participate, commissions
need to be open, invite public comment, and be accessible to all. Commissioners
must also be accountable. Responsibilities include holding and attending meetings,
voting on policies and recommendations, submitting annual reports, and completing
training and disclosing financial information to prevent conflicts of interest.

Some of these governing bodies, however, are not operating efficiently and
delivering the professional level of service due to lack of training and
communication problems with staff liaisons. This Report reviews Oakland’s boards
and commissions and recommends methods on reforming their management and
operations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendatlon 1 Develop Currlculum to Tram Newly Appomted Members'
‘Recommendation 2: Develop Spec1a11zed Trammg for Board Management for
Chairs and V1ce Chalrs :
,Recommendatlon 3: Ut111ze Somal Medla to Increase Apphcant Pool

: Recommendatlon 4: Provide Stipend for Low-Income Commissioners
Recommendation 5: Periodic Meeting and Tra1n1ng for Staff Members :
,Recommendatlon 6: Adopt Attendance Policy : ,
Recommendatlon 7: Adopt Annual Report Requlrement for Pohcymaklng and
Quasi- Judlclal Boards i
-Recommendatlon 8: Use Templates for Agenda and Mlnutes to Include ADA B
‘and ESL Notices : L
Recommendatlon 9: Develop Commendatlon Pohcy for Pubhc Serv1ce '
Recommendatlon 10: Consider Elimination of Inactive Comm1ss1ons and
Consohdate Boards By SubJect Matter

000007



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 4

I. FINDINGS: OAKLAND

Below are findings pertaining to the City of Oakland. Generally speaking, Oakland
has no formal training policy, relies on an honor policy for board and commission
members! to review ethics materials, and has little accountability to ensure
commissioners comply with training. In recent years, the Public Ethics Commission
has provided training to some boards, and is undergoing additional reforms.

APPENDIX A identifies the enabling statute, authority, and missions of Oakland’s 34
boards and commissions. Understanding each board’s role and authority provides
guidance on organizing analyses for this report.

CITY OF OAKLAND

a. No Formal Training Policy. Oakland does not have an overarching city
policy to train board and commission members. Training occurs at an
individual board level, without strong guidelines from the City. That means
little oversight and accountability. Each staff liaison provides training in
different forms: from emailing an introduction packet? to conducting three-
hour in-person orientations.? Generally, the City Clerk’s Office administers
the oath of office and collects Form 700s. Pursuant to AB 1234,
commissioners who receive compensation, salary, stipend or reimbursements
of expenses are required to complete state mandated ethics training. Many
Oakland boards and commissioners do not receive remuneration, and thus
are not subject to AB 1234. The State provides training online.

b. Reliance on PEC Handbook and Government Ethics Act Video. The
Oakland Public Ethics Commission has a handbook for commissioners and
board members covering ethics requirement.5 Staff liaisons from different
boards and commissions chiefly rely on this ethics handbook for training and
orientation. The handbook briefly reviews the Oakland Governments Ethics
Act (covering financial and personal conflicts of interest); Sunshine
Ordinance (public meeting and agenda); roles and responsibilities as board
members; and the city government’s structure. In addition, the appendix to
the handbook provides frequently used Robert’s Rules of Order, telephone
numbers to city departments, as well as a list of boards and commissions

! Boards and commissions are used interchangeably in this Report.

2 See, e.g., Commission for Persons with Disabilities.

3 See, e.g., Public Ethics Commission.

+ AB 1234, Article 2.4 (“Any member of a local agency legislative body or any elected local agency
official who receives any type of compensation, salary, or stipend or reimbursement for actual and
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official duties.”).

5 Public Ethics Commission, Board & Commission Member Handbook, available at
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/oakcal/groups/cityadministrator/documents/report/oak063333.pdf.

000008



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 5

required to file Form 700. In 2017, the Public Ethics Commission updated the
handbook and provided a checklist of orientation activities. The checklist
reminds newly appointed commissioners to do the following within 30 days of
appointment:

» Take the Oath of Office

» File Form 700 — Statement of Economic Interests

»  Watch the Public Ethics Commission’s Introduction to the Oakland
Government Ethics Act Video

» Take the State’s online AB 1234 Ethics Training for local officials

* Review Commission/Board’s applicable laws, by-laws, policies, and
procedures with board/commission staff

» Ask questions about Commission’s procedures and process if
unclear about the process or information provided

= Ask the Public Ethics Commission for advice or assistance

. Little Accountability. It is uncertain whether all newly appointed board
and commission members receive this handbook. Interview with the
Executive Director of Public Ethics Commission and a staff liaison to an
advisory board noted that training is based on an “honor” policy. There is
little accountability metrics in place to ensure compliance with the handbook
and its checklist. The State’s online ethics training provides a certificate of
completion for AB 1234 requirements, but this obligation only applies to
commissioners who receive remuneration.

. Ongoing Efforts. The Public Ethics Commission, recently with increased
funding, has focused on developing training for boards and commissions.
Staff from the PEC have gone to different hearings and allocated time to
show a 10-minute video on the Oakland Government Ethics Act, followed by
a questions-and-answer session. PEC staff is currently developing an online
platform, based heavily on San Francisco’s, to train commission members.

. Staff Comments. The Public Ethics Commission hosted a workshop for
Board and Commission staff on April 13, 2017. The PEC heard concerns from
staff members to help identify any challenges that liaisons may be facing in
supporting their City boards. Problems about boards and commissions
members that some staff liaisons noted include:

» Lack of knowledge of government structure

» Lack of training with ethics laws, including Browns Act and Sunshine
Act

* Some boards and commissions are understaffed, leading to cancelled
meetings

000009



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 6

» High turnover with staff and commissioners leading to loss of
institutional knowledge

» Lack of understanding among some commission members with their
commission’s jurisdiction

= Problems attaining quorum

= Lack of standardized bylaws and quorum rules, with some boards
requiring a majority of attendees, majority of full commission (i.e.,
Parks and Recreation Commission), representation from certain
interest groups (i.e., Rent Board)

*  Undefined removal policy — what is “for cause” removal

» Undefined excused absence policy

OBSERVATIONS FROM MEETINGS

A, Landmarks Preservation Advisory Commission

During the February 6, 2017, attended by the author of this report, commissioners had a
hearing and generally demonstrated an understanding of the items before them. However,
both staff and commission members seemed to disregard Robert’s Rules of Order formality.
For example, the Chair had called a recess to allow the next presenter to set up. But he did
so without taking a vote. Nor did he reconvene the meeting with a vote.

B. City Planning Commission

In the February 15, 2017 meeting, commissioners generally demonstrated knowledge on
matters before the commission. A dispute arose over whether planning staff informed
neighbors of attachments to electric poles in the neighborhood. A member of the public
spoke about the electric poles, but was never told the amount of time she had at the podium.
She was unable to structure her comments to fit two minutes. And because the chair
acknowledged that no notice of public comment rules was provided, the public speaker was
allowed to speak for an additional two minutes.

000010




IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 7

II. BENCHMARKING ¢ CASE STUDIES

A. SAN JOSE

From 2007 to 2012, the City of San Jose conducted an aggressive review of its city’s
boards and commissions, with the goal of defining an effective and efficient

governance structure that provides for meaningful engagement between appointed

commissioners and the Mayor, City Council and City Administration. In the

process, San Jose developed structural improvements to the City’s Boards and

Commissions.® San Jose’s structural improvements, adopted in 2012 into the City

Charter, include:

a. Required Mandatory Training for Newly Appointed Members. San
Jose now conducts mandatory trainings for members within the first year of
appointment. 7 The City Clerk’s Office and the City Attorney’s Office
coordinate the training, along with Boards and Commission staff. That
mandatory training session covers the following:

» (City Charter

= Municipal Code

=  Council Policy

= (City Policies and Procedures

» Brown Act and Sunshine/Open Government Reforms

= Ethics requirements

= Statement of Economic Interest Disclosure requirements

= Parliamentary Procedures

» How to work effectively with staff, fellow commissioners, and
stakeholders

»  Commission-specific information for each Commissioner covering
the purpose, organization, programs, functions, etc. within the
purview of the respective commission.

b. Additional Training for Chair and Vice Chair.®! Each year, specialized
training for incoming and continuing Commission officers (Chair and Vice-
Chair and/or Subcommittee Chairs) is. now offered, focusing upon the
following:

= Meeting management and effective governance

6 See APPENDIX D for full information on consolidation of boards and commissions in San Jose.

7 San Jose Council Policy 0-4.

8 San Jose supplies a handout from the Institute for Local Government on the role of chair, available
at http://www.ca-ilg.org/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/understanding_the_role_of_chair_nov_2012_3.pdf.

000011



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 8

» Parliamentary procedure
= Team building
= Brown Act and Sunshine/Open Government provisions

. Required Staff Training. The City Clerk’s Office holds quarterly meetings
with mandatory training to help staff conduct business within their boards
and commissions. The training includes materials and topics covered at
commissioner trainings. After a year of quarterly meetings, the City Clerk
particularly suggested this approach to keep boards and commissions
informed and engaged with the Clerk’s office.

. Recruitment of Board Members. San Jose had relied on city council
members to include vacancies in their community newsletters to inform
residents of vacancies. In recent years, the City Clerk’s Office would post
announcements on social media platforms, including Twitter, Facebook, and
nextdoor.com. The City Clerk’s Office has noticed an increased of applications
as a result.

. Vetting Applicants. Staff members do not make recommendations to the
City Council and Mayor on candidates. The City Clerk’s Office chiefly ensures
that all application materials are complete. If the position requires some
specialized skills, then the City Clerk’s Office verifies those credentials. The
City Attorney’s Office then conducts a conflicts check. City Council and the
Mayor may have their own vetting and interview process after the
administrative tasks are completed.

. Annual Report and Work Plan Requirement. In 2013, the San Jose City

Council passed a resolution to require all city commissions, except charter
commissions and the Appeals Hearing Board, to submit an annual report.
This requirement is in response to the lack of accountability seen in years
prior. For example, in FY 2010-11, only 16 of the City’s 30 boards and
commissions submitted an annual work plan to the Rules and Open
Government Committee. Now, boards and commissions are required to
submit an annual work plan and report documenting the following:

*  Annual work plan of activities

=  Budget of personal and non-personal costs

= Annual report of accomplishments

= Submit the report to Rules or designated Council Committee.

000012



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 9

g. Strict Attendance Requirement. San Jose specifies that a commissioner
who has unexcused absences from (1) any three consecutive regular meetings,
or (2) 20% of the meetings in a calendar year, is deemed to have resigned.?

h. Consolidation of Boards and Commissions. San Jose consolidated
boards and commissions with members through attrition eliminating the
need to select members for removal. In particular, San Jose consolidated 13
boards and commissions into 6 — largely based on similar subject areas. The
Appeals Hearing Board was formed from three previous boards with
appellate jurisdiction. For a review of San Jose’s consolidation efforts, see
APPENDIX E.

B. BERKELEY

The City of Berkeley has over thirty-five boards and commissions on which more
than 350 citizens serve as members. Per state law, AB 1234 only applies to
members who receive some remuneration or stipend. Berkeley has focused training
on chairs and vice chairs of each commission.

a. Mandatory Annual Training for Chairpersons and Vice
Chairpersons. Berkeley requires the chair and vice chair to complete
mandatory annual training on (a) the parliamentary procedure of conducting
and presiding over meetings according to the Brown Act and City policy; (b)
the role of the commission and its organization; and (c) the commission's
relationship to the City Council, the City Manager, the secretary, other
commissions, outside agencies, and the general public. The City Council
implemented video training for commission members.

b. Training Video. The 55-minute video generally covers materials presented
in the Commissioners’ Manual. After viewing the training video, the chair
and vice chair must file an Affirmation of Completion within 60 calendar
days from their election as Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson. Failure to do so
results in the immediate forfeiture of the position of Chairperson or Vice-
Chairperson. While not mandatory for commissioners other than the Chair
and Vice-Chair, completion of Commissioner training is encouraged for all
commissioners.

c. Commissioners’ Manual. Berkeley’s 98-page manual for commaissioners is
both elaborative and informative. The content covers, in pertinent parts, are
available in APPENDIX D.

9 San Jose Municipal Code Section 2.08.060.

000013



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 10

d. Stipend for Low-Income Members. To alleviate some hardship of citizens

to participate on commissions, the City Council has authorized payment of
$40.00 per meeting to Council-appointed members of commissions whose
annual family income as filed jointly is below $20,000.00 per year. If a
commissioner desires to establish stipend eligibility, the member must file a
statement with the commission secretary.

SACRAMENTO

. No Centralized Training. According to Assistant City Clerk Wendy Klock-

Johnson, Sacramento does not have a formal training policy. The City Clerk’s
Office is in charge of ensuring compliance to State requirements, including
the filing of Forms 700s and completion of AB 1234 training. Each
department may provide additional training on the subject matter, as needed.

. Individualized Training. Each commission and department has its own

orientations. However, the City Clerk’s Office and the City Attorney’s Office
give periodic trainings for updates at board and commission meetings.
According to Ms. Johnson, many boards and commission members are city
employees or officials, and have already completed state and local ethics
training.

. Compliance Check; No Ethics Commission. Sacramento does not have

an ethics commission. The duty to oversee boards and commissions, to ensure
compliance, is therefore with the City Clerk’s Office.

. Recruitment. When a vacancy arises, the City Clerk’s Office makes

announcements via some traditional outlets: social meeting, library, and
council member outreach. In recent years, Sacramento has also utilized social
media, such as nextdoor.com, and has noticed an increase in applications as a
result. If the position requires specific expertise, then they reach out to
certain professional organizations or workplaces. The City Clerk’s Office does
the bulk of recruitment, and also asks departments if there are constituents
they recommend.

. Vetting Process. The City Clerk’s Office reviews applications to ensure

compliance with general requirements

000014



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 11

111 RECOMMENDATIONS

A. TRAINING AND BEST PRACTICES

The Public Ethics Commission is currently developing an online platform for
training board and commission members. Interviews with staff members indicate
favoring some form of in-person training. San Jose, for example, requires the Office
of the City Clerk and Office of the City Attorney to conduct annual mandatory 2-
hour trainings for all commissioners and board members. San Jose offers such
trainings six times a year: three in January and three in July. Staff in San Jose has
responded positively to having these trainings. Berkeley has a 55-minute online
video that covers these topics, with quizzes embedded in it to ensure that
commissioners understand important concepts. Those questions are included as
APPENDIX B of this Report.

1. Comprehensive Ethics Training

Oakland should have a more comprehensive training — whether at an annual
workshop (like San Jose) or an interactive online platform (like Berkeley). AB 1234
training is not required for most board and commission members if they do not
receive remuneration. The only legal requirements then are to take an oath of office
and file Form 700s. This is largely insufficient.

Training should include:

» Membership Requirements — application; terms of office; temporary
appointments; terminations; resignations; accommodations; stipend; use of
city resources

= Ethics and Conflict of Interest — dealings with parties before the
commission; disclosure requirements; incompatible duties, activities, and
compensation; and state mandated ethics training

= Commission Organization — election of officers; mandatory annual
training for officers; duties of officers; power of chair and vice chair; and
subcommittees

» Coordination with City Council — relationship to council; communication
to and from Council

» Coordination with Staff — duties of the board secretary; relationship
between secretary and commission; relationship with the city administrator

000015



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 12

» Relationship with Other Commissions, Outside Agencies, General
Public, Individual Commissioners, Press and Other Media

» Public Meetings — agenda and notice requirements; accessibility of meeting
locations; meeting procedures; rules for public participation

» Commission Procedures — meeting procedures (establishing meeting rules;
processing of motions; reconsideration of a vote); Robert Rules of Order;
decorum; polling, quorum, and voting; notice and cancellation of meetings

= Commission Agenda and Minutes

= City Council Agenda Process — submitting reports to Council

2. Training on Subject Matter and Board Jurisdiction

Additional training should be tailored to the board’s subject matter and jurisdiction
(e.g., quasi-judicial; policymaking; advisory; and oversight). The City Clerk and City
Attorney’s offices should develop a curriculum appropriate for each category of
boards and commissions. For example, in quasi-judicial hearings, due process and
evidentiary rules should be covered. In an interview with the staff liaison of an
advisory board, the staff indicated that some commission members frequently
inquire about expanding that commission’s advisory jurisdiction to perform certain
individual investigatory tasks. That, however, is beyond the scope of an advisory
commission. Training should cover how to make certain commissions most effective:
how can an advisory board voice its opinion?

After completion of training, each board and commission member should file a
certificate or affirmation of completion to the City Clerk’s Office.

Oakland should adopt a similar training as Berkeley. Chairs and Vice Chairs of
boards and commissions have additional duties of presiding over meetings. Their
facilitation of these open public meetings directly affects the public’s perception of
professionalism from the City of Oakland. Therefore, additional training is
warranted.

Berkeley requires the chair or vice chair to complete mandatory annual training on
(a) the parliamentary procedure of conducting and presiding over meetings
according to the Brown Act and City policy; (b) the role of the commission and its
organization; and (c) the commission's relationship to the City Council, the City
Manager, the secretary, other commissions, outside agencies, and the general
public.

000016



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 13

B. BOARD SUPPORT AND RECRUITMENT

RECOMMENDATION

Oakland generally relies on posting vacancies on its website to seek applicants for
boards and commissions. City Council members may also include vacancies in their
newsletter. Some board liaisons also reach out to community groups or professional
associations that fit the board’s subject matter.

Oakland should utilize social media for recruitment. San Jose and Sacramento both
post announcements on Facebook, Twitter, and nextdoor.com. So does Oakland’s
Public Ethics Commission. Jelani Killings, Ethics Analyst at PEC, noted that the
application pool doubled after using nextdoor.com. The City Clerk’s Office at San
Jose also noticed an increase in applicants.

Nextdoor.com offers a free web platform
where members can make
announcements to people who live in

5 extd oo r their neighborhood.
i In 2015, a total of 176 Oakland
neighborhoods have Nextdoor groups,

and 20 percent of all households in the
city use the site.

COMMISSIONERS' .

In an effort to increase the diversity of boards and commissions, and to alleviate
some financial burdens that may result from public service, the City Council should
approve a stipend for commissioners who make under a certain income. For
example, the City of Berkeley provides a stipend of $40.00 per meeting for volunteer
board members who earn less than $20,000 a year. Note, nonetheless, that this
would directly subject any commissioners who receive such stipend to the
requirements of AB 1234.

000017



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 14

F

¢ MEMBERS

"PERIODIC MEETI

The Public Ethics Commission hosted a workshop for board and commission staff on
April 13. The PEC heard concerns from staff members to help identify any
challenges that liaisons may be facing in supporting their City boards.1® The PEC
asked whether staff liaisons wanted periodic meetings to address the concerns and
bring forth matter to their attention, in which staff responded in the affirmative.

The City Clerk’s Office in San Jose holds quarterly meetings for board liaisons. The
training includes materials and topics covered at commissioner trainings, as well as
updates to ethics laws and city council policies. Board liaisons may also add items to
the agenda, thereby alerting the City Clerk’s Office of any developments or needs.
After a year of quarterly meetings, the City Clerk highly suggested this as a way to
keep boards and commissions informed and engaged with the Clerk’s office.

Oakland should have periodic meetings and trainings for staff members to ensure
that boards and commissions are supported. This also provides a direct forum for
staff liaisons to bring attention to any issues or problems.

C. COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

~ RECOMMENDATIONSG:

Problem. The Oakland City Charter provides that members of boards and
commissions may be “removed for cause” after a hearing and upon the affirmative
vote of at least six City Councilmembers. There is, however, no definition on what
constitutes for-cause removal.

Solution. Oakland should define for cause removal in order to provide staff
liaisons with guidance. For example, Oakland could specify that a commissioner
who has unexcused absences from (1) any three consecutive regular meetings, or (2)
20% of the meetings in a calendar year, is deemed to have satisfied for cause
removal.

In 2009, the Oakland City Council asked the League of Women Voters of Oakland to
evaluate the operations of boards and commissions and provide recommendations
on improving allocation of resources. Among the recommendations is to set an

10 See above for notes on staff discussion.

000018



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 15

attendance policy for regular meetings. The League suggested standards for boards
and commissions meeting monthly or more often are

a. Maximum number of excused absences: 3 per year
b. Maximum number of unexcused absences: 2 per year
¢. Maximum number of consecutive absences: 2 per year

Defining Excused Absence. Board and commission members, by a majority vote,
may excuse a fellow board or commission member’s absence from meetings at the
beginning of each meeting for any of the following reasons:11

1. Illness of the member, family member of the member, or personal
friend of the member;

2. Business commitment of the member that interferes with the
attendance of the member at a meeting;

3. Previously scheduled vacation of the member, notice of which was
provided to the respective board or commission in advance of the
meeting;

4, Attendance of the member at a funeral, religious service or ceremony,
wedding, or other similarly significant event;

5. Unexpected, emergency situation that prohibits the member’s
attendance; or

6. Other reason for which the member has given notice to the chair or
secretary of his or her unavailability 15 days in advance, as long as the
unavailability is not expected to last for longer than 30 days.

Upon resignation or removal, the Mayor should quickly fill the position or elevate
an alternate member to that seat. The Mayor, if she wishes, could also reappoint
the resigned or removed member.

The City should require certain boards and commissions to produce an annual
report. In 2010, the League of Women Voters of Oakland had submitted a Report
and Recommendation suggesting an annual report requirement as well. There are
merits to implement accountability measures to ensure that policymaking and
quasi-judicial commissions adequately serve the community at large. Because those

11 See, e.g., City of Chula Vista Municipal Code 2.25.110 (“Attendance requirements — Excused
absences — Removal for cause”).

000019



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢» COMMISSIONS 16

commissions perform tasks that directly impact the public, with due process
concerns, they should be held to a higher standard.

For example, the Rent Board hears appeals in response to rent adjustment staff
decisions. The Rent Board also recommends regulations and changes to the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance. The Rent Board wields significant authority that directly
impact Oakland residents. This warrants additional accountability to ensure that
the Board both performs its statutory duties and that the City is providing adequate
support.

San Jose, as well as San Francisco, requires an annual work plan and annual report
from each board or commission. The City Clerk’s Office in San Jose has developed a
template for boards and commissions. Each annual report should include:

» Objectives for the Fiscal Year

= Time Frame

= Accomplishment and Status of Objectives
=  Future Targets and Goals

See APPENDIX E for a sample of San Jose’s three-page template from the Ethics
Commission.

Boards and commissions should inform the public of available accommodations and
resources to residents who need such assistance. All commissions websites and
agendas should include language about accommodation. See APPENDIX C for the
current status of Oakland’s boards and commissions in notifying the public about
accommodations.

The following is an example of language to be included in every public agenda
notice:

“This meeting is wheelchair accessible. To request materials
in alternative formats, or to request an ASL interpreter, or
assistive listening devise, please call the [Department] at
[phone number] at least three working days before the
meeting.”

“Do you need an Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter

or other assistance to participate? Please email [email] or call
[phone numbez] five days in advance.”

000020



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 17

D. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

In 2010, the League of Women Voters of Oakland asked staff to complete a written
survey and interviewed past and present members and staff of these boards and
commissions.

The survey and the interviews!? indicated that board members do their work
effectively when:

= they focus on policy recommendations which are considered seriously by
the city council and its committees;

*  bhoards and commission have their full complement of members and those
members participate fully in their bodies’ activities;

= c¢lected officials collaborate with boards and commissions in formulating
goals and specific charges for the boards and commaissions;

= members of boards and commissions take initiatives to bring issues before
the bodies of which they are members;

= the council recognizes the contributions to city government made by
members of boards and commissions.

Oakland should acknowledge the public service of board members. In San Jose, a
member of a board may be recognized for his or her service when the member has
served for at least one year and who has not been reappointed to that board or
commission.

E. RESTRUCTURING AND CONSOLIDATION

. RECOMMENDATION 10; ; :
CONSIDER ELIMINATIONA OF INACTIVE COMMISSIONS
- AND CONSOLIDATE BOARDS BY SUBJECT MATTER

One of the potential advantages of the consolidation of City boards and commissions
is that they would be responsible for providing advice to the City Council and City
Administration across a broader spectrum of programs, services, and facilities. This
would require the commissions to take a more holistic approach to analyzing and
responding to demands for services and the allocation of limited resources across a

12 Boards and Commissions in Oakland. Findings and Recommendations from the League of Women
Voters of Oakland. May 2010.

000021



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 18

continuum of needs and services. Moreover, consolidation of certain boards and
commissions would save on resources and staff time.

An approach for consolidation involves merging boards and commissions with
similar subject areas. For example, from 2007 to 2012, the City of San Jose
underwent efforts to improve the efficiency of managing its boards and
commissions. It concluded its efforts, in part, with a consolidation plan based on
boards and commissions’ subject areas.!3

1. Inactive Commissions

The City’s website indicates inactivity from the following boards and commissions;
therefore, they should be eliminated. These inactive boards and commissions
include:

» Community Jobs Oversight Commission (inactive; unknown status)

»  Cultural Affairs Commission (Website indicates commission on hiatus; could
also be consolidated — see below)

» QOakland Animal Services Community Advisory Committee (inactive)

» Qakland Successor Agency Oversight Board (inactive; unknown status)

» Violence Prevention & Public Safety Oversight Committee (defunct)

=  Wildfire Prevention Assessment District Advisory Board (inactive)

2. Consolidate By Subject Matter

The City Council should consider consolidating the following boards and
commissions after receiving community input:

18 See APPENDIX D for the results of San Jose’s consolidation of boards and commissions,

000022



Pubhc Art & Culture
Advxsory '
Commlssmn

IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 19

| Cultural Affalrs g
,Commlssmn (CAC)

: 1 CAC is currently on h1atuS'

9. CAC promotes art1stlc and

" "Pubhc Art Adv1sory
.Commlttee S

| 3 Slmllar subJect matter W1th Pubhc
;Art Adv. Comm

cultural events in c1ty,

000023



IMPROVING THE WORKS OF BOARDS ¢ COMMISSIONS 20

METHODOLOGY

In conducting this research and report, I:

» Identified the ethics laws governing boards and commissions from State and
local governments

» Reviewed ethics handbook, rules and laws in the City of Oakland

» Interviewed city clerks from benchmark jurisdictions

» Reviewed ethics handbook, rules and laws from benchmark jurisdictions,
with emphasis on boards and commissions

*» Reviewed and completed AB 1234 online ethics training

» Reviewed agendas and minutes from all boards and commissions from
January 2016 to December 2016

» Reviewed websites of boards and commissions to identify public notices
related to ADA and ESL accommodations

» Attended board and commission hearings

» Attended staff workshop by Public Ethics Commission

» Reviewed 2010 Report from League of Women Voters of Oakland on Boards
and Commissions

» Interviewed staff liaisons across different boards and commissions

» Interviewed a former City Administrator of Oakland

000024



APPENDIX A

000025



‘(8861

“153) @91l IWIWO)

Jswageue g doueUlY BY}

01 panHwgns syodas jeuonewiojul

" -pUN0Y A1 941 10 9INIWWOD

gjo T e8ed — v xrpueddy

SIND LEEET

o W‘wkﬁ, - AOSINpY JO- W0} 31 soyeyAjjesauss .‘uwm_u:m_, b0w_>u< STOT s uolsstuwioy
: : N , L : L "ON 2dUBUIpIO Aiosinpy 198png
198png Jowlioy} 221ApE S,JVg YL "saidijod [eioueUly : ,
, 3y seoejdad u<m . pue ‘sanudAd4 .muu:u_u:waxu. ,
‘ uo 12UnNo)AYD SY1 SISINPY
-syonesado
. pue JusWageuew Y|0I3U0I 4O
~ juswaiinbal _UoISSIWWO) Anunuod ysnoJuy puepieQ Jo Uod ; L Jayiey) SJ2UOISSILWOD
 1eueyy-oN - eweyy 243 J0 Juawdofandp yenbape pue 1 w:_v_.m E§_o.m 8861, 3Y1 JO 1A 3PIMY 104 jo pleog
RIS dAIsuayaidwod ayy sansul Ajsnuyap : It ’
. : 2J0Ww pue aowolid oy:Juswiedaq - :
1104 J3A0 [0J3UOD SAISN|IX3 PIOH
; ; A 80T uoiInjosay
S ."ue|d J19ISBIN UBLIISIP3ad Yl ‘ueld : uolIssilwwo)
i .,,w.:m,E“m,‘__,:cm» 1915BA 9jpAdig fSpuny ySnolyi-sseqd. I S . ‘ : _ uonenodsuesl UOISSILIWOD
o . Suipunj. ueLsspad pue a|2Adlg g aInsesjg uo Aye)eS 211qNd , AIOSIAPY: 102 uenjodonisiN | AJosIApy ueLIISapad
. em’;s-oN indwi apinoid “8uioAdIq pue Supjjem . TR e Sl /.0y 1ensind pajeas 3 9pAag
Panney W - -10'ssa00e pue Alajes syl anosduwiy . SN STZET
‘ R "ON 92UBUIPIO’
S13)U3) JOIUIS JO JioMml1au ‘
UOISSIWWIO) m\Eu ayl toaa:w umuo_cwm puepeo siojuas, Kiosinpy” L dagt R ko) Suidy
sJohep Suoayje sanssi 1noge {1punc) ‘ o : uo uoISSIWWO)

/ S92IA195 UBWINYH

- . 1766 "ON 2dURUIPIO

(218 ‘Mo3siy)

saj0U 20 .

Ay ayy pue JoAe BY3 SSIAPY

:o_ym,_uummn :

 uoneysigan Suljqeus

uoissiwwo) /pieog

000026



G Jo g @3ed — v xtpuaddy

§,90UBUIPIO B8Y]) 23SI3aN0

"ON @0ueulplO

“LYLTT 2pOD.
‘JUSWUISA09
RIUIOJI[BY SE [|3M
se ‘(17) 8829 ‘
UO0I199S./687-S0T ‘wieaSoug uonay AlUNWIWIO
! 14 moa , d uonay Al 3 Y961 pieog
meq21gnd 10y 3Y3 Jo} suojrepuswiwodal Sulpuny L ) S
585 :m‘_,m“u pue Adtjod saxew pue ‘jpunod A3 Soaul Moy AIOSINpY - .61 30 PV >u_::,toaa0 Supensiuiupy T
Eni ,.Gm.muv B i ; . : / $92148S uewni R ; : J1WouU0d] |BIapay diystauped
s 300]g S92IAIRS ay3 pue AduaBy uonpy Allunwiwo) S : : :
L , : 03 juensind paiear) uondy Aunwwo)
~Aunwiwo) 3y3 o pieog BujuidA0D) 3SIAPY :
_|edapsy v
ynm Ajdwiod -
"031 papasu
pieoq- ON
Alunwwod sonniaest : L san|iqesig
Aupiqesip ay3 Sundaye sispew uo \mwu_io%,.h_.mnss.” Atostapy 0861 .wmmm ‘ON mucmw__pw, YUM SU0sIad | TT
[12un03 A1) pue JoAey sy Suisinpy : ‘ : U0 UOISSIWIWO)
, e sannp ale[jadde
L Suiwsopad pue suonedijads :
“aapeyyAln . -
ui _uwumgoa‘_,on.c_ UOREJLISSE[D JO eAv.ddE SIS |3Uuosiad  jenipni-isenpd 886T 43u1ey) Ao puepieo pieog a31as JIALD | OT
ks o o : ‘@A1I5dwod 3y wols suotisod . : T 3y1 JO X] 321y : o
N J0.uondwsxa ay1 jo jeaosdde [sajny :
991AI9S [IAID DY JO JUSWIIIONT
Sk bio i S9lMAlOR ‘
o Aoyine pale[aJ pue ‘|Iauno) AuD ay3 o3 ‘ e
‘Juepodwi o1 anp suopepuswodal Adtjod ‘sjesodoad lewipnf OL0°E0°LT 9PO3 uoISSILIWIOD
e : : . 8uuoz [ Suluueyd -isenb /. 2861 jediuniy S IND - 6
. popuswiwodas 1UsWwdoSASP U0 SUOISIIBP ‘SaIPNIS Suuueld A
. o Supjewholjod 76T ‘ON 23ueUIPIO
Jouing =s3k ysnosy Ai) sy jo Juawdolensp - i ,
, o pue yimo13 Aj4apJo syyarowold )
‘ . pieog mainay
pJeOg 3AoeU| 531104 5,U321 8
el . Japey) Ao
Jsmeyd A1 *pund 31 JO SIUAIIL JO UolIeN|eAS 9y} 0] Judipuswe
ul vﬁﬁ,oa‘_ou.c_. 9Y1 pue ‘SUoIIEPUSWIIOIDI ‘ 1y3isiano 6007 ue ‘() aunseay) WSisiano
e pue Suipuny ‘Suiuuejd 218518435 aping 198png./ usJpjiyD; uazn./ ‘yineas AU jIS414 pue uluueld | £
aAnenIul E.uo>. 01 pue pund s,uaJpjiyd. puepieo ‘ Supjewholjod ‘966T  SppiAg ise lsney) pun4 s,uaJpjiyd
Ag-poiessn - oN 15114 SPDY Y1 10J WYSISIDA0 dpInolg : o Ao pueplep
;, BYL O flIX 1Y
: ‘Siqeuues ( } Z sanses
L JI9s 1eY1 sassauisng Jo Uonexe) v00z) 2 W uoISSIWWOo)
-DAIIBIHUI JD10N yijesy oljgnd ysisiono 01 juensund psjeatd
ha Sare pue Suisuad)| WoJ) SnUIA3I-Jo /el ] sigetiuey usztiiy 002 e veaTt Aoen3ay | 9
: ap S JUBWISINGSIP pue uopelusws|dw T = ) sigeuue)

000027



g

Jo g e8eq — y Xipuaddy

. -uoijensasald
uo |uno) A ncm.:o_wm‘_EEou . ; : pieog Aiosipy
ww» : Suiuueld A1 2yl sasiape co_um?_mmm‘_n Asosinpe / S 5 ‘ST vonensesaty | 61
pue‘sajuadoid 2110751y Uo sSulleay 91403SIH - 8upjewhdljod ; £888°ON 2oUeuIpIQ .v_hmEucm._
MJA3I USISSP S1ANPUOI-‘PUBPIED ; : :
Ul SYJRUIpUE| 1I0ISIY SBIHIUIP]
_ .wgm_”mc_,m,._._o:, *90UBUIPJO UBWISNIpY w3y 3y 03 .tow_>nm / : , pieog
- |ed0] pue 33e3s sasueyo pue suonendal puswwiodss Suisnoy Supjewholjod ommﬁ, ‘STWD PS6TT uonesody % sy | 81
osje Aay] 'suoisidep Jjels Juswisnipy / "ON 3JUBUIPIO
) jelzuspisay Suisnoy
1uay o0} asuodsad ui sjeadde sieay |eipnl-1senp
S1y3 2AJ9S PN0d
~ Apoq Jayzoue o
~pUnod A 3y “293HWWo) ‘spiepuels 200z weiSoud jeidpay
,.,.v._.w>,w§o.; ,.\._u,::..v_. juswiyouuy . 9Juewl0443d 1EIS PESH YUM “2lejjam piIyd “3ydisiano 158 pJeoq . 013uensind pajeald pleog
RIS .nmm:g&. 47 §,PUNOY 30UBPJOIIE Ul SAI[iWe) PUB USIPIIYD . ./ UOKREINP3 Aped / Mosinpy Aosinpe USTD 0ECET| MOSIApY LielS peaH o
" Apoq Suisssiano | Agiuswiuioddy ‘03 SO2IAL9S JO AIBAIIBP BYY 98SIaA0. - - ‘ : . : ‘L6t *ON 22UeuUIpIO
- “sannbay , ‘ ‘
| ‘oulaping juesd
. |esopad- S9A
‘ juawdolaAsp jedniina
. pue sue 13ye yaiym-sweidoud -
JUBIBA pue sai31j0d smsiAaaa pue ‘sassadoud
s1eas ||V ,'sniely 3ujuued jean3nd AJlunwILICD
- uo Apusund u1 sazedidijsed .\mco_umNEmw\_o‘ ainiji pUE S  Kiosinpy s66t SN €ZETT uolssiuwo) o1
Si UOISSILULIOD ‘ SHE pue sisiJe [enpiapul : , *ON SoUBUIPIO sJlely [e4nynd
3yl :salou “Joy jHoddns sageinoousa ‘Ao ay3 ‘ :
21SQOM - SSA U1 SS1IAI30B [N N  pue J1silie Jo
: ssauaseme d|gnd ajowoud pue isisse
‘punj 03 m:o_umn:mE‘ESE SN :
: S ‘paeog AIOSIADY
8umijod Anunwwo) vi

000028



gJo ¥ o8 — v xipueddy

ol o ey Aln puepe wa)sAS JudWAIND
uoisuad 1S61 5 YD P _.v_ 0 S d 8¢
- Y3 40 IAXX 31UV all4 g ljod
uoIea129Y pue syied uo _ucso.‘ uoneasdal o s : Jeog AJIOSIA
13 4§ pue sjJed uo Jouno) Ay uonea) RiosiApy ‘66t - ST pJeog v
v:m_v_mo 3y3 01 sUolEpPUAWWIOIDI pue syied : 7 .G9087ON dUeulpiQ | uone3IIY 7B SHIed
mwv_mE pue mtoammu B :
T pieog |
pieog m>_yum_..__+ 1YSisianQ Aduady | Gt
S 10SS329NS puepe
.mm:m_uamcmg ; St pieog
pue mmw‘_swh SYINOdYY - T L ©asueyd Ay puepieQl|  wSIsAS uawaInay
Jo1yauaq wr_p Joy spuny uoisuad w_._u , o co_m:wm_, Em._m,._m\.,o - mNmﬂ “3Y1 JO XX 3911y saaAojdw] ve
v wo EmEHmm>c_ 29s19n0 pue 1993014 ‘ ; Ry S |eddiuniy puepieo
~ubuepieg jo Ay
i o7tz plinoge. . 23 Jo AJISI9AIP: DIUIOU0IR pue diuyis S : uoISSIWIWo)
‘passed:anil e ‘|e1ed u_cam‘_momwm ay Jo. and3YRY, ‘ ‘ S : , ; Sunousipay
e T *359. UOISSILIWOD oueuJanodoiqnd . Supjewhorod 10T ‘agaJnsesiy €T
LA U9ZRIY - ON! SUILoOLI04 m_m:_u_znc_ €1 jo co_mm.EEOu. S : RV s - juapuadapul
EE T e u:mncwawucm ue Aq panoadde puepeo
pue umeJp aq ssulf 10U1s1a s,puepien
, , e 0LZvE0 2p0D A1ajes
! 1y8Isiano’/ . Lot pue.yyesH-|ed Aoyany
,m:_mw_,nz m:_v_mc..;u__on_ o 8e6t Agq'pautanod 'S 8uisnoH puepeo 144
‘ ‘TPES ‘ON dduUeUIPIO
: ) 931HWwo)
AiARoe v - Eiseueyina. ol o L Aosiapy
TR - puUB ‘DJB}jaM ‘ONndsal ‘aled i i alejjom [RUIUY AIOSIAPY <. -7 6T0OT - SN L6EET Anunwwo) | 1z
A —SSA By - SN B "ON 92ueUIpIO
R - “yajesy Jewlue:uo Jeis Ao asIApyY . : : . S22IAIBS
L e LR [ewiuy puepjeo
S0IAISS pue sweiSoudJd0:
jo Jleyaq uo $91BJ0ApE pUE ‘spuny , T
xmu,o 24nSE3IN:J0-IYSISISA0 USZIHD Ch S : e ‘SUNTD UOISSIWIWOD)
: sorTorRIRIET Kiosia
i m.mn_>o.a_.mm_u__oa Aseagn aiqng an : Py 6961 «mow oz mucmc_Eo Alosiapy Adeaqri 0¢
puepjeq uo puno) Ay puepieo
Y] 0] SUOHEPUIWIWOIBI S BN :

000029



gJjo g 9deq — y xtpueddy

. papunj-Ajjesapay oy} 2951900

10-9707 03 |eJohey

‘smef $31Yla , :
A} uo pauieny speatl S:o> 103 91E0APE
S oo ; 03 S19ped| AN YUM Sulloowi yinoA - hIoSIA ‘STINTD SHSOT uoISSIWOo)
o mm> ..M:Mh_wwm::_ - pue yInoA Suidaje sanssi Aajod / 921AI9S uBWINH i _u,< 5861 “*OoN @2uBUIPIO MOSIAPY UINOA S¢
214ed. ul 5 ;
“103RUIPI0O]) JA Aoy uo __n,.c:ou Auo syy Buisiapy
-PUEPEO W) mwu_Emm pue : ) - pieog 1uswdo|aA3q
sweJsSoad Suiulesy pue-juswAhojdwa - YSISIBA0 Suipun4 Aosinpy 910T" e

221010

R "aNUIADI A 2INSEIN SOMILILIOD
s , ysnoayy _umvc:wm,Em,Lmo‘_a auijo Em._ﬂgo
el uopejuswaldwi sy pue: ‘Suipusds A 24nsesay Kisses u__.o_:m M 43
: 'PuE U01339]|02 3NN aus jo . co_ucw>mhn_.mwcm_o_>
uoneiisiuwpe Jadoid ay)l se9sISAQ
‘ , ‘anudAdl
10V UOI1UDA3I4 SIUS|OIA SIIIAIBS pue
‘A1ayeS 21jgnd PUePED YTOT 3YLZ v i o d9RWwWo)
aJnseay y3nouyl papunj sweiSoud -A13jes d1jgnd -3yBIsssn0 . yToC ZaJnseay WYSISIDAQ SRS | TE
ayijo :o‘_uScmE,m_,nE_ ay1 pue = ‘ , pue AlajeS 21iGnd
‘Buipuads pue uopd3||0d anuanal.
3y] Jo UOIBIISIUILPE BYY SIISIAAQ - B
smej uoneasi8alrisiAqqor ‘
pue Sunm‘_m%cmb ‘aoueuly uSiedwies o ;_m_u_n:_v o 20Z "I9S ‘Jsueyd uoISSIWIWOD)
‘$21119 JUaWUIBA0S S, puepRO. S ) ,._,m,m:v\ ommH £ Ayd.puepeo S31413 24qnd 0e
30 A9:3Y1 Yum 2ouerjduwiod saansug Bupewidod - =
e otjqnd-03 Sulutead sislew
[[2.uo j1punoy A1) pue ‘JoAe -
UoseBSIUIWPY A 343 sasinpe ‘e ‘ Fa o "S'IN™D 98011 397IWWIO0D
a1qnd Joy sjesodoad pue ‘spolpaw . 3Jnynd pue suy A1oSIApY 6861 on aoueuipio | Alosinpy t« I 6T
uoI09}9s ‘s198pnq ‘salls sancidde B RO : :
pue sasnpadoud pue saiolod :
wiesgoid dojaAsp 61 11E1S YUM SHIOM

000030



-~ APPENDIX B

000031



APPENDIX B

City of Berkeley, Commissioner Training Video
Available at http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=544

Quiz Questions

1. A Council member has told Mary Smith, a resident of Oakland, that she will
appoint her to the Disability Commission. Mary may:

a. Introduce herself at the commission meeting that night as a new
commission and participate in the meeting;

b. Wait to participate until she moves to Berkeley the following
week and is formally sworn in by the City Clerk;

c. Participate as an ex officio member of the Commission until she is
formally appointed.

2. Commissioner Nina Nabir intends to celebrate Eld al Fitr, a Muslim holiday,
on the same night as a Commission meeting. Her absence:

a. Will count against her because it is unconstitutional for the City to favor
religious observances;

b. May be excused and not counted against her if she completes an
excuse form and submits it to the secretary prior to the meeting;

¢. Could have been excused for Easter, but not for this devotional practice,
because the City only recognizes certain cultural or religious festivals.

3. Commissioner Zach Siegel has been on the commission for eight years but
was removed from the commission in his fifth year, for two months, because

of his failure to attend three commission meetings. He was then reappointed.
He:

a. Can continue on the commission because he served less than eight years;

b. Is so valuable that he should serve as long as his council member wants
him to serve;

c. Is disqualified from serving any longer because termination as a
result of absenteeism is still counted towards the overall eight-
year consecutive year term limit.

4. Newly appointed commissioners receive a Form 700 from the City Clerk and
are asked to complete and return the form as a matter of public record. This

000032



form includes information about the commissioner’s financial interest and
positions on the staff or board of a non-profit. Commissioners:

a. Must fill out the form within 30 days of appointment and on an
annual basis or face termination from the commission;

b. Must submit the form, but there is no hurry as long as it is filed within a
year;

¢. Must submit a revised form each time there is a change in financial
interest.

. Housing Commissioner Mike Johnson is an unpaid member of the board of
the NAACP which is applying to the Commission for a grant to conduct
testing in hosing discrimination cases. When the grant is discussed at a
meeting, Mike:

a. Must disqualify himself, state the reason and leave the room
during the discussion and vote on this issue;

b. Has no conflict of interest issue because he has no personal financial
interest in the grant; ,

c¢. Has no conflict of interest because the City and the NAACP have the same
goal of prohibiting discrimination.

. Commissioner Jones has just been appointed to the Planning Commission is
on the board of a housing advocate group. It has a policy of advocating for
denser development in the downtown. Commission Jones’ role on the
commission is to:

Advocate on behalf of his community group;

Never take any position that his group may be advocating;

Consider and weigh all points of view;

Disqualify himself from anything on which his group may have a position,
whether or not it is a legal conflict of interest.

O

. Powers conferred on the Chair include:

a. Maintaining decorum and proper debate by eliminating irrelevant,
repetitious or otherwise unproductive discussion;

b. Appointing commission members to temporary subcommittees subject to

the approval of the commission; ’

Approving the agenda prior to distribution;

Signing correspondence on behalf of the commission;

e. All of the above.

o 0

000033



8. John Wilson serves as the chair of the Civic Arts Commission, but was
terminated for lack of attendance. His appointing council member then
reappoints him. When John returns to the commission, he:

a. Is automatically reinstated as Chair;

b. Returns to the commission as a regular member and may be re-elected for
a term of one year from the date of his return;

c. Returns to the commission as a regular member and may be re-
elected to serve the remainder of his original one year term.

9. All of these are acceptable methods for communicating with the city council
except:

a. A letter to Council from the full commission to express support or
opposition on an issue;

b. Individual commissioners speaking on their own behalf during the public
comment period; '

c. Three designated commissioners meet individually with each
councilmember to garner the five votes needed to support a
commission item;

d. Submit a report through the agenda process for consideration of the
Council Agenda.

10.The Youth Commission believes that many youth need more information
about their rights. It wishes to create a City program of volunteer lawyers to
provide legal advice on the street. The Commission can:

a. Start to evaluate what the cost and other implications of such a
program may be;

b. Direct a staff person to start putting together the program;

c. Ask the City Council’s permission as to whether it can begin exploring
this idea;

d. Design a cool logo and contact the local bar association to recruit
volunteers.

11.The Health Commission wants staff to develop a public education program
about SARS. The staff says that it does not have any time to do so. The
Commission should:

000034



a. Contact the City Manager to see if staff can support the program
and if not ask the Council to fund the program in the budget
process;

b. Complain to the City Manager and Council that the staff is being
insubordinate;

c. Tell the staff person to postpone work on a different ongoing program and
instead do work on the SARS issue because it is more pressing.

12.The Waterfront Commission is considering recommending a ban on jet skis at
the Marina and Aquatic Park. The Commission should:

a. Simply recommend banning jet skis since it is the right thing to do and
get on with writing a report to the Council about it;

b. Try to have a meeting without notifying the proponents of jet skis in order

to avoid unnecessary dissension;

Do 1 and 2;

d. Write a report, evaluating the effect and implications of a ban,
after eliciting and considering all view.

o

13. Commissions should:

a. Develop an overall work plan that is within budgetary, legal and
policy constraints yet allows room for responding to unfolding
circumstances;

b. Create many subcommittees that develop as many proposals as possible
so the Council can choose and creativity is not stifled;

¢. Advance cutting edge proposals even though they may be expensive or of
questionable legality because the City should be innovative;

d. Only implement what has already been adopted because the Council
knows best.

14. Commission meetings should be held:

a. In informal settings like a commissioner’s home so commissioners can
work in a relaxed setting;

b. In citizen’s home so they can feel included;

¢. In the Council chambers because it is the most official,;

d. In publicly accessible locations.

15.Because Peace and Justice Commission meetings are getting too long, the
Commission establishes three standing subcommittees of three

000035



commissioners each, who meet in each other’s home without the public. This
is:

Fine, because three people are less than a quorum of the commission;
Fine, because subcommittees are exempt from the Brown Act;

A violation of the Brown Act and the ADA;

Fine, because otherwise it is not possible to get all the work done.

e R

16. The Labor Commission learns of a wildeat strike at Chez Panisse during
public comment. The workers announce that the strike will last for several
months. The Commission would like to immediately recommend that Council
support the strike. The Commission may:

a. Take immediate action on this matter with a two-third vote since the
Commission became aware of the issue after the agenda was posted;

b. Agree to set this matter on a future agenda because it cannot be
added to the agenda of the current meeting and they should study
the issue before making a recommendation.

17.Landmarks Preservation Commissioner Joan Lee has invited all the other
Commissioners to a party at her landmarked Maybeck home. There is no
Brown Act issue present because:

a. This is a good opportunity for them to discuss their views on how to
implement the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance;

b. This is not an official meeting so they can discuss what to do on a tricky
new project that is coming before them;

c. Joan is only planning a purely social gathering at which the
Commissioners have been told not to discuss Commission
business.

18.A commission desires the Council to act on their recommendation at the May
19 City Council meeting. How much lead time should the commission allow
in order to finalize, adopt, and submit their recommendation?

Two weeks;

One month;

Three to four months;
One year.

e T

000036



19. Which of the following actions requires a resolution?

a. The Mental Health Commission would like the Council to officially oppose
state budget cutes by sending a letter to the Governor;

b. The Commission Labor wants the Council to designate March 1st as
Eugene V. Debs Day;

c. The Citizens Humane Commission requests that the Council create a new
ordinance banning the dressing of pets in holiday outfits;

d. All of the above;

e. None of the above.

000037



APPENDIX C

000038



diysisunied
uoRdY AjJlunwiwo)

‘ m._mom mc_umbw_EEv( l

Jo 210N

o S UET0C [
‘Jdueuipo: : e ur aodad o : - SalMIgesIg yim
‘ : A A ; : A A A A
ul-paJinbai podaljenuuy . ° djqejieAe S L %]  SuOSI34 UO UOISSILIWO)
o : B : HMN— U|.> «
N "N | N A A A A pJeog 33IAJ9S |IAD | OT
N A N N A A “A| uoissiwwio) Suluuejd Ay | 6
o pieog | 8
: ,<\z MIINSY 321|0d S,udzZ31)
‘9115 o1eJedss : g ?m_a ; L
" e'uo paysod ase saanuIwl N SN 82180 N N A A 4BISISAQ pue
; - CinEn Tt : L R , Suluue|d pund s,uaJpiyd
pue sepuage 5,39111WIWOD SIy]- JO'WIoL UL) A B
o R L . 9
*Sepuage mau 03 payoene- AR
~fansgem uo 3|qeIuaP! N A «z N X A R uoissiwwoy
e -9} uoa uspt - : (i - Aiore|n3ay siqeuure)
‘Alisea you sanuilu Sunasy: e
S
2 z 2 i % A B v> uoissiwwo) | ¥
: S : : ; Aosinpy 188png
- " .m>‘ : ,z‘ N 4 : SI2UOISSILIWOT | €
= R A Hod jo pieog
a8ed 4
.= , g SYIOM ! uoIssiuwo) Alosinpy
N A N N o1gnd . A A ueLIIsapad 18 adAdlg
: , L BIA-A ‘
oo K A z : SN TN A A 8ui8y uo uoissiwwo) | T
(N/A) N/RY AN NR NN gmz\>v..,_kﬁz\>w
S0, SqIM asqam uo 'PaIsod: | uonejsuell |- sapligesIq | - SO0 L VA
saj0U4d ‘ . gRiit), , ) il R EE
S o uo AydeiSoig | . siouoissiliio) ~Moday |~ a3en8uey | /majdoag | 1wﬁonlg _u.wamwm, uolssjuuIoy/peog
,SI2uoissiuuwo) 3088 “Jenuuy : “'03.92110N SOIUIAL |- ‘mukcm v

 ALINISVINNODIY

000039



epuage Ut pappagus
- !1e3|2 30U SAINUIW JO BUIISOd

aajwwo) | 8¢

N Aosiapy 1y aljgnd
waisAs | /¢

JUSWDINRY 34 73 921|0d
9T

pieog AlosIApyY
uonessIdy 1§ siied

10S5333NS puepeQ

pieog ySissang Aduasy

T4

ST B pJeog waishs | €7
Lo _wum,m.ou‘a.. JuawWanay saskoidwy
Jdnjouang: A jedidiuny puepieo
uolssiwwo) Suioulsipay | €<
juspuadapuj puepieg
Auoyiny | 12
Suisnoy puepieo
samwwo) | 0z
Aosiapy Ajunwwo)
$92IAIBS jRWIUY puepiep
5 uoissiwwo) | 61
A N Atosinpy Aseiqr]
’ o S pieog Aosiapy | 8T
A z : UOI3BAISSAl YJewpue]
‘ i i1
'91SgOM pieog i
1U3Y U0 01g-J0 3sij OU ‘JuaLIND z z pieog uoiiedo|ay 3
W9as 10U 80P NG ‘BUsqam ¢ = 1uay |elluapisay Suisnoy
A1) uo siqejieae st sl 'y
S T 91
S €102
sre e urydodal pieog
N1 sigeene | Kiosipy Le3s peaH
ceoasel=Ac |
: . uoISSIWIWOo) | ST
N N sieyy jeanyn)
pteog Alosiapy | VT

3upljod Alunwwo)

000040



“31ep 01 dn jou-31ISqoM

UoISSIWO) AIOSIAPY YINOA

143

pleog

WSis1aA0 A1aes A|qnd
12 UOJIUBABI4 9IUB|OIA

juswdojaAag-adiopoMm

.wwt_E.Eou ]

€€

2a1IWWwo) IYSISISAQ
S@2IAIDS pue A1a4es dlignd

o€

UOISSIIWIOY ST JNjgnd

6¢

000041



APPENDIX D

000042



APPENDIX D
San Jose’s Consolidation Plan

San Jose consolidated boards and commissions with members through attrition
eliminating the need to select members for removal.

| CONSOLIDATED | | | ORIGINALS

Airport
Commission

(1) Airport Comin )
Airport Noise Advisory
Committee

| NEW. APPOINTMENT & MEMBERSHIP = |

11 members nominated by Council
Members

Appeals Hearing
Board

(1) Appeals Hearing Board;
(2) Traffic Appeals Board;
(3) Building Code and
Disabled Access Boards

11 members nominated by Council
Members

(1) Advisory Commission on
Rents, Housing and

Housing Community Development; 11 members nominated by Council
Commission (2) Mobilehome Advisory Members

Commission ’

(1) Early Care and

Education Commission; (2) | 15 members, 11 nominated by Council
Library Library Commaission; (3) District, plus 4 specifically appointed

L. Library Bond Oversight with an early childcare background to

Commission

Committee; and (4) Library
Parcel Tax Oversight
Committee

be nominated by Council Appointment
Advisory Commission

Human Services
Commission

(1) Human Rights
Commission and (2) the
Disability Advisory
Commission

13 members, 11 nominated by Council
Members, 1 disability service provider
or disabled representative, 1 domestic
violence service provider or survivor,
both to be nominated by Council
Appointment Advisory Commission

000043



APPENDIX E

000044



73O 1 98eq

910¢/8/9

[((@oLov0TT
OIAIS 399] ¥ 9PLL JO 0SO° VT ¥
UO1109G YIIM 32UBPIOIIR Ul SUOISIOSD

Suro3uQ paxnmnbai se SUOISIOSP UOISSIUIWIOD 0} SABU[[BYD 91198 UOISSIUIWOD 0} SaZUL[[eyd J[1I2S ¥
SUOISSTWIWIO) SOIYIS [290] JO JIOMIOU 9FPI[MOUY] 2PIMIIE)S B SUIYSI[GRISS
L107 Areniqag 103 ueld e Juowa[dunr pue dojoAsp 01 YIS0 K110 Y} YIim SULYIOM dNUNUOD)
SULIOJ Jo/pue sampaooid ‘suope[n3ai
L10T dunf Surpuswe J0] SUOIIRPUSTUIIOIAI [IOUNOD A3I0 9T} 01 premIo] pue dofoas o
suonen3aI sonpe pue udredures 03 predas
L10Z Tdy UM UISOUOD JO Seate PIJIIUSPI JO MITASI PI[IRIOP djeniul pue 9ZIJLIOL ©
101 Y1910 K10 pue LouIoN® A0 SY) UM JIOM ‘MITASI OAIR[SISO] pue suonednsaAul
‘Furrojuowr soueIjduwiod WOIJ SINSAI SAITR[NWND JO SUOHEN[BAS U0 paseq
suorje[n3al somyie pue uSredures o) predal Yum wIdasuod Jo
1107 Areniqa, seaIe o[qIssod AJIIUSDI pue MIJAST SANRISISI] JO S)NSAT SATR[NWND )enjBA O
Suro3uQ Kianoe ([ero1puf pue) aAneisido] Jo 1oedull §Sa5SE PUB MIIASI AJ[BOIPOLIS]
MIIASI SOTYIS [BIUUSI] STQT S JOABW aY) WO [exIo)al & Jad [10Unod 4310
oy} Aq Teao1dde J0] premio] pue SouBUIPIO PO Y1 01 SjusuIpuswe pasodoid [(D)0L0'¥0°Z1 DINLS
9107 IOqUISAON J0 1ustdoreAsp ae1dwod 01 AsuIone A5 8yl Yim SunjIom snupuo) O :70y] saro1jod pue suone[nSe1 SOTYId
sAep Jepualed (] wryim asuodsar & Surpiaold Jo 9A1109(qo o131 (aM “[IOUNOD pue uSredwres 03 preSol YIm [1OUN0D
Suro3uQ K10 o) Aq pairaJal anssI sono 10 uSredieds yoes 107 (S)UOTIRPUSUINIOdT 2PIACI] K15 9y 0] SUOIBPUSTITIO3I BN '€
suorje[ngal so1y1e pue uFredwes 01 pIe3al YUm UIOOUO0D
L10T Areniqaf Jo seare gjqissod AJTUapt pue SUOIIBSIISIAUL JO SHNSAL SANR[MWND JJBN[BAY O
yurerdwos ® Jo 1dreoar
Io)Je SABp Iepusled )€ UMM J[GE[IeAR SUOIIBPUSUINIOS] pue 10daI S,JoJen[eAd KDoLo+0°21 DNCES 199]
juepuadapur o) SulARY JO 9ANO9[q0 oY) Yim ‘SBULIRSY puR SUOIETIISIAUL areudoidde a1oym UOIIOR JUSUISIIOJUR
UOISS[WIWOY JOJ sainpao0id pue suone[ner Jod uone[ola Z spLL © Jo o3e1 pue Z1 9fILL JO SUOHEOIA
8uro8up uone3a[[e Yore 10J uonoe Jusweosoyus oeridoidde oxel pue 91eSNSOAUT ‘MATATY JO suome3s[[e 91eFNSOAUT pUB MITARY T
sainpaooid pue suoHeNIaI SONIS pue USredureo Furple3al yoeanno
L10T Y21\ Arununuod 9s19A1p 10 ved e juswadwi pue dojoaap 01 YISO A0 9] YIIM JIOM
suone[ngar so1yle pue Ufredures 03 pIedal YiIm UIdoUOd JO SeaIe
L10T Areniqaj s1qissod Anuopr pue Suriojiuowt 9oURi[dWOd JO SYNSAI SAR[NWND djenjeaqy O [(V)0LO V0TI DINES
SOUBUIPIO SOI}0 pue UIreduwied ;39 apoD redomniA a1 Jo 71 oNLL
1M 90UBPIOdOR Ul PI[IJ SHodal pue SaImsojIsIp JO MI1Ad1 d1or) eurlid SYI90 Ul S9OUBUIPIO SO1YIS pue ugredures
3uro8uQ A1 913 WOJJ paure]qo eiep 2oueIdwos Jo joedul SSISSE PUB MIIA A[JBOIPOLIS] ITe Yum 9ouri[dwos JOJUOW  °]
omeIpWIY Lo ~ suondYy, g -9T07 Ad 10§ 9A1RIqQ

L1-910T Ad 10F UB[d HIOM
NOISSTNINOD SOIHLA ASOf NVS

000045



7 Jo 7 93eg

9102/8/9

[(D)ocos0T

DJIALS :JoY] stusurygsidwosse

Jo wodax yuenbasqgns © pue uaxeOpUN
9q 01 saniAnoeR Jo ueid YIom [enuue ue

L10Z sung yodai enuue /1-910z pue uejd jjIom g1-£10Z © onssI pue dopaas( IeaK [eISIJ 1orS [IOUNO0D 9} 0 3pIAcId "9
[Dogy1Tel
sajurodde [1ounoo syerrdoxdde 211 01 UOIOR SAI}O2LIOD SUIPUSUINIOIDT IIATLS 1991 10V spIo2ay onqnd
Sui03uQ IOpISUO0D ‘pUNOJ aIe SUONE]OIA Sp100al o1jgnd pajeadal Jo [RUOLIUSIUT JT ot Jopun Apradoidun ppayyiim Sureq
SAep Iepua]ed (¢ UIyIm aIe Sp1029a1 Jo 1red awos 10 SpPI0dal

gurodup puodsax pue paxmbar se yurejdwos sprooas o1jqnd oBa 9JRNBAS PUB MIIAY 181} Suiaqre syurefdwos oy puodsay ¢
e o swemy L T-9107 Ad 2052480040

L1-910C A 10F Ue[d JIOM
NOISSTNINOD SOIHLA dSOf NVS

000046



€ Jo [ a3eq

’ 910¢/8/9

suore[n3al

sonyie pue ugredwes 01 pie3al Yim UISOUOD
Jo seare s[qIssod AJTUopI pue suoeSnsaAuUl
JO SINSaI sAnR[NUIND d)en[eAq

juredwos e yo 1draoal

IojJe sAep Iepus[ed (¢ UN}IM S[qe[IeAR
SUOTJEPUIUIO0AI pue Lodal sJojen[eAd
juepuadopur a1 Sutaey JO 9AR09(q0 91 PIIM
‘suLresy] pue SUOIESIISOAUI UOISSTUWOD J0]
sampasoid pue suonen3al 1od uore3olfe

(9107 Arenue[) S2OUBISWUNIIIO
SuneSnuw o} anp papurosal Ajjuanbasqns
sem 1) Ajeuad JIA10 B posoduul
pue _‘sppodal uonngLyuod 9e[,, Jo Sulfiy
Surpre3a1 pa1mnoo0 pey 016°90°C1 JINLS
JO suonejoIA Tey) punoy ‘Jure[dwos sauo 10 ©
(9107 Arenue[) Paimdd0 pey SUOIIB[OIA
Ou 1BY) PUNOJ “ISIIJ U} JO UOISUIXD
ue Suraq puooes Y ‘syurejdwos omj jof ©
:uonsodsip eyenidordde suruiaiop 0} sunresy
pajonpuod pue sjurejdurod 221y} poyesnsaau]
(S10T Amny) voneSyseaut vjqissod
PUR MITASI 10] ASUIONY IOLISI(T 9U) 01
Z1 9[ILL 0} Supe[oI 10U SNSSI OUO PALIJY ©
(9107 yoreN
‘5107 Toquiondosg ‘G107 Anf) uone3nsaAul 10J
asneo JuLOIgns SuneNSUOUIap Sjov) o1jIoads

[(DoLo¥0Z1
IJINIS J9Y] srerdoadde
ou@ﬂ? ﬁOﬁom wﬁoauo.mo,«ﬁu

[ore JOJ UOHOR JUSUoIoJus oyeridordde AJnuapi 10U pIp ‘ma1Aa1 uodn ey syureiduioo 9107 dunf oye} pue Z] 9pLL JO SUOHE[OIA JO
oY} PUE S1ESNSOAUL “MIASI 0} SNUKUOD INOJ posSIWSIp pue I0J SFULIRAY PIjonpuo)d) - G107 AInf | suone3efe 91BS1ISOAUL PUR MIAAN
(3u108uQ) sapasoid
pue suornen3a1 sonype pue uSredures Surpredar
[oranno AJIUNWIIOD 3SIDAIP 10] sonunpioddo
2101dX2 03 JIS[O A310 OU} YIIM PIYIOM
oouerjdwos [[ereao Suracadun Joy ueyd
(oBaonNo AJUNUIIOd © dO[9ASD 10U PIP UOISSIWIUOD 3] ‘SUOIIO9[Q
as10A1p Joj uerd e juswsidu pue dojoasp J0 1YTISISA0 2IOW 2INSUS 0} JJBIS PoYedo|[eal
01 I3[0 A310 S} YIIM SUDHOM SNUIUO) UOTUM 901JJO § IS0 A1 oY) Ul SoFuer]d
suonen3al [eUo1jBZIUBFIO 03 ANP PUB ‘@dIJO S IS0 K110
somy)e pue uredures o0} preSal YIm UIOU0D 92U} JO peOP[IOM Y} Paonpal Yorym ‘Aourone
Jo seare o[qissod AJijuap! pue Suriojuow K10 pue Y1219 K10 9} UdaMI2q son[Iqisuodsal
dourT{dWOD JO SINSOI SATB[NWND SJBN[BAY Ul BONOUIISIP Y3 Jea]o Jun{eul [19Unod
s110do1 puE S2INSO[OSIp Ay10 pue JoAew 21} £q USYE] SUOHOR 01 AN [(V)OLOY0'Z1 DINLS 9]
JO maraa1 o1oey eurLId s3I0 A110 21} (8ur03uQ) sproda1 pue SAINSO[ISIP JO MIIASI opo)) Tediorunyn 941 Jo 71 9MIL
wox paure)qo eyep ddueldwoo jo yoedur oroey ewilid s3{I9]0 A110 oY) WOL PauleIqo 9lozoung | uI seoueurpIo SOIYX0 pue uSredures
SSISSB puB MITA3I A[[esipoutad 0} snumuo) BIEP 20URI[AWOD POMIIAI A[[BOIPOLID] - 6107 AIng ITe unm 2ourl[duwod IOITUOA]
s[eogpIsieL oMy - syuomysiduwony ¥ snje)s sweagouny, -ST0T A 10§ 9An9I[qQ

9T-CT0C Ad 10§ woday fenuury

NOISSININOD SOIHLH HSOf NVS

000047



€ Jo 7 a8eq

910¢7/8/9

SUOISSTIIUIOY SIIYIS [820] JO

JI0MIU 0T PA[MOL 2PIMaIL)S B SUIYSI[GRISS
103 ue[d e juowerdwn pue dojaasp

01 31910 A319 91} [Pim SUDfIoM SnUNU0D
suLI0y Jo/pue saIpasoxd

‘suone[ngo1 SUIPUSWE J0J SUOHEPUSTUWOIL
doeAsp pue ‘M21A2I 2ANR[SISI]

pue suorelnsaAul ‘guriojiuonr souerduiod
WOJJ POYIIUSPI LISOUOD JO SBae 9ZNLIOL]
MOTARI SOTYI0

[BIUUSIq S, JOABW QU} WOIJ [el19ya1 & Jod
[Iounod A110 oy} Aq [eaoxdde 10} oouRUIPIO
Y10 oy 03 syuewpuawre pasodoid dojeasp
01 Aswione A110 Y1 Ipim Sunjiom onupuo))

(9107 TdV) 31910 L310
oy} £q pasiaal sem wirof jure[dwos sy, ©
(9107 sung) [OUNOO
Ao o1 £q Teaoidde 103 paredord sem
‘s3uLreal] pue SUOHESNISOAU] UOISSTUILIOD
I10J sampadoid pue suone[ndar Jurpusure
‘4669, uonnosay 1o0f jusweoeder y  ©
(§107 12q0390) [10UN0D
Ko o) Aq pardope sem ‘suonNqLIUOD
uSredures pue SUONOS[O “UOISSIUIIOD
oy} Surureaod suonemgal Jo suoisiaoid
Ure}Ia0 SuIpUsie ‘74967 SOURUIPI) O
SunoJ pue sampasoid

‘suonye[ngai o[qeordde o} sjuswpusure d1y192ds

dotoAap 01 J1910 A0 pue AsuIoNe A110 )

UM PIYIOM ‘ST-410T A Sulmp senssI Somy10

pue uSredureo Jo uolEN[RAS S,UOISSIUIUIOd
91]) WOJJ PAALIOP SUOTIBPUSUINIOID] UO paseg
(Buro3uQ) 901330

s,Astone K310 oy ut senuond 1oy3ry 01 anp
2ouBUIpI YID 2y} 03 sjuswpuswe pasodord
Jo yuemdoeasp uo spewr sem sso13o1d oN

000048

suonemsar _
sorg1e pue uSredwes 03 pIeSal Yim WU
Jo seate g[qissod AJIUapl puB MIIASL
2ATIE[SISO] JO SHNSAI JANR[AWIND SJBN[RAT] e
Ayanoe (ferorpnf

(910¢ sunf) spoY JUSUIUINACD

BRUOJI[ED) 911 0] S3UBYD JU0I

B {)IM JUSISISUOD , 29 ITUTIOD,, JO UOTIUISP

Z1 o[ILL 213 Sunjew [1oUN0Y A1 oY1 Aq

1eaoxdde 103 asueurpio ue dojoasp 03 IS0
pue) aanesi3e] siqeordde jo joeduur 10 pue A3uI0)® A10 SU) YNM PXIOAN O
SS2SSE pue maIAa1 A[jediponiad o1 snunuo) e (Su108uQ) A1anoe [jeorpnf pue]

skep aATIR[SI39] o[qeoridde pamaraas A[[eoIpotidd e

(910T yoreIN) poured uonnqLyuod
uSredwes o3 Jo YISua] a3 03 sOFuLYD

Jepus[ed g1 U asuodsal e Suipraocad
10 2A1193[q0 a1 YIIm TIounod A310 oy}

[(D)0L0+0°T1 DINIS Fo4l
sa1o170d pue suonem3al soIYle pue

£q pai11o]1 anssI so1y3e Jo uSredures yora s[qissod Suipre3al [eLIs]aI B 01 asuodsal ug 910z sunf uSredures 03 pre3aI YiIm [IOUNOD
hom @?o:mwﬁ&&oo& opiaoid 01 SNUUOY) e | [IOUNOJ AJIO 3} O} UOHEBPUSIIWIOIAI € PIPIAOI] e | - mSN bE. bs M 8 Eo:mvﬁ&&oo& 8_&2
e m_wow\uowuﬁﬁ u...::,m Ly i ~=oE._m__mEo3<»%mESm i Ew.ﬁa::ﬁ 3 5 XA 10§ 95830

91-ST10Z Ad 10J yioday [enuuy
NOISSININOD SOIHIH HSOf NVS




g€ Jo ¢ 9%eg 9102/8/9
[(©)oco80T
DINIS Joy] stuowmystdmoooe
(910 suny) podaz Jo y1odoar yuenbasqns
[enuue 91-G1(Z Y3 ponsst pue padooasq e © PUE USYBLISPUN 8q O} SOIIIAIOR
‘poxmber se syodar (9107 sung) 910z ung Jo ueyd yIom [enuue ue 1eok
[enuue pue sue[d Jiom SUnssI SnUUO)) ueyd 3HoM £ [-91 0 oY) ponssi pue pado[oadq e | - S10C Alg [B9SIJ YOBD [IOUNOJ SY) 03 9PIACL] 9
[(D)ocr 1721 DNILS
:Joy] 19V sp1099Y 21[qng oY) Jopun
sAep Iepusies ¢ Apaadosdur proyyim Sureq axe
unm puodsal pue ‘parmbear se jurerdwos 910Z sunf | spi0daI Jo 1red aWIOS J0 SPI0VSI 1B}
SpI09a1 oTjqnd Yoo 9Jen]eAd PUB MOIASY (Sur03uQ) paaresar orom sJuIR[dWOd ON o | - S10Z Alg BuiBoyre syurejdwios o) puodssy ¢
[(@oL0'+0 21 DNLS
:J9Y1 ¥ °PLL JO 0S0°HT 1 UonIsg
poxmbai se . . . 910z sunf TIIM S0UBPIOOIR UL SUOISIOOP
SUOISIOOP UOISSIIIWOO 0} S9FUSIeyo 3]119S (Bur03uQ) poaleoal o10Mm SIFUS[IRYO ON o - 6107 LAing UOISSIUIUIOD 01 SOBUS[[eYD [0S 4

(3u103U()) SUOTISSIWIUIOD
SOTY19 e00] JO JIOMISU 33PI[MOU] SPIMSILIS .
' Surysijqesss 10f senmunyroddo Jo uorneIojdxs
OIRIIUL 03 O[O K110 SYI YIIM PIION o

(penuyyuoo)

OT-ST0Z Ad 10F Hoday [enuuy
NOISSDAUNOD SOTHLT FSOL NVS

000049



FILED
OF”('[: OF THE ¢
OAXL A" CLERK

IIHAR 1t A I0: 20

AGENDA REPORT

CITY OFOAKLAND

TO: Sabrina B. Landreth R FROM: Michele Byrd
' City Administrator s - - Director '
SUBJECT: RAP Fee Increase |  DATE: February 19, 2019
City Administrator Approval t Date: .
ciy pproval //g/ | e 3/ ,?//M
RECOMMENDATION

Staff Recommends That The Clty Council Approve An Ordihance Amendmg Ordmance
'No. 13497 C.M.S. (The 2018-19 Master Fee Schedule) To Increase The Rent Adjustment :
' Program Service Fee From $68 00 Per Unit To $101 00 Per Unit.

. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The: Oakland Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) lmplements the Oakland Rent Adjustment
Program Ordinance passed by the voters in 1980. Since then, the scope of RAP expanded with -

the voter-passed.Just Cause for Eviction’ Ordinance (Just Cause) and the City Council’s

* adoption of procedures regulating the withdrawal of rental units from the rental market (Ellis Act -
evictions) in .2003. As rents have dramatlcally increased and displacement and homelesshess -
have reached crisis. proportions, both the City Council and the voters have passed new
ordinances in response to these heeds. More rental units have been brought under the
_protection of the Rent Adjustment and Just Cause Ordinances by Measure JJ and Measure Y,
and the Tenant Protection Ordinance, Uniform Relocation Ordinance and the Tenant Move Out -

- Ordinance all contemplate active. admmrstrahve enforcement by RAP;

The result has greatly expanded the demands on RAP as it carries out its mlssmn and dual
responsibility to monitor and protect against unwarranted rent increases and evictions while’
" contlnumg to attract persons who are willing to invest in residential rental properties : and
ensunng that property owners receive a fair return on thelr investment. '

Between November 2017 and October 2018, RAP has had a vacancy in its key Ieadershlp ,
position, the RAP Manager. This vacancy made it difficult to address the lncreasmg demands ’

: and operate proactively. The RAP-Manager hired in October 2018 possesses in-depth

experlence and has both a Iegal and programmatlc background She is leading the unit to -

{

‘ - ltem: ’
Finance & Management Comm|ttee
March 19, 2019

0000507"



Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase 4 T
Date: February 19, 2019. _ ' Page 2

implement several new approaches that address these increased demands and will ensure that -
the program is well understood in the community, easy to use and transparent, and engages in
enforcement to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations passed by the voters and the
City Council. :

There are two programmatic models for approaching the regulation of the landlorg-tenant ,
relationship: passive enforcement and active enforcement. Currently, Oakland uses the passive
enforcement model, offering limited public information and enforcing its regulations only in
response to complaints. An active enforcement model on the other hand, uses extensive
outreach to inform tenants and owners about their rights and obligations under the law,
maintains full and accurate records through reporting requirements for initial rents and eviction
proceedings, ensures information provided by owners is also sent to current tenants for review,
provides robust mediation and dispute resolution services, and encourages compliance rather
than trying to mitigate conflict on the back-end. The new measures outlined above demonstrate
a mandate to move toward active enforcement of the local laws.

What will the proposed fee increase do?

.The proposed fee increase of $33 per unit (from $68 to $101) will allow Oakland to move from
passive enforcement to an active model, while enabling staff to provide efficient, accurate,
enhanced, and more effective services to the public. Specifically, the additional resources
deployed as a result of the proposed RAP fee increase would créate a strengthened program so
that it is equipped to proactively enforce the ordinances under its charge and meet increased
demands at an optimal level, with updated and modernized policies, procedures, and practices.

The fee increase will also address the remaining outstandmg RAP audit findings. To date, three -
of the 10 flndmgs have been addressed. Five of the remaining seven findings rely on this fee
increase in order to implement them in a complete and timely manner. Attachment Ais a

review of the audit findings, progress in addressing them, and the way in which this proposed
fee increase would-facilitate the closing of the remamlng fmdmgs

- Finally, the proposed fee increase will facilitate the stafflng needed to address mcreased work
volume resulting from various recently adopted measure, including the most recent Measure Y
and the mandatory seismic retrofit ordinance. The former increases the number of units
covered by Just Cause, and the latter will generate an uptick in capital improvement petitions.

The eXpected outcomes are summarized below and further detailed in Table 5, which provides
a quantitative analysis of the “level of service” improvements that the increased fee will deliver
as compared to current levels of service,

» Improved service to the public as evidenced by timely processing of petitions, scheduling of
hearings, and rendering of decisions;

* Increased and enhanced outreach efforts, as evidenced by expanded drop-in hours,
increased informational seminars, workshops, and community presence;

* Increased utilization of less costly alternatlve methods to resolve dlsputes through creation
of a mediation program;

s Improved tlmelmes in addressmg public i lnqumes

Item:
Finance & Management Committee
March 19, 2019

000051




Sabrina B. Landreth, City: Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase »
Date: February 19, 2019 ' : Page 3

+ Improved RAP fee collection and monitoring of covered units and their rental rates; '

s Increased awareness and understanding of Qakland’s Rent Adjustment, Just Cause, and
related laws, as evidenced through enhanced, user-friendly public facing materials;

» Improved accuracy and quality control in all aspects of the program;

+ Increased monitoring for compliance; and

¢ Enhanced ability to collect analyze, and distribute data

While the fee increased in 2016 from $30 per unit to $68 per unit, in large part this increase only
ensured that the program fully covered eX|st|ng costs at that time. The 2016 Agenda Report
pertaining to the fee increase concluded the following: “The scenarios described in this
supplemental report do not account for the staffing needed to address the current backlog of
RAP appeals cases, or the needed funding to entirely address all concerns with the RAP

- program.” Essentially, the fee increase to $68/unit funded a baseline level of operation that
included the hiring of three additional staff, development of the initial phase of a case '
management database, and a modest increase in legal services for low-income tenants. It did -
not address the increased number of petitions and client inquiries, the impact of new legislation
and regulatlons over the past several years, or the need to recast program |mplementatlon and
enforcement in a manner responsive to the changing housing |andscape

BACKGROUNDILEGISLATIVE HISTORY

On July 19, 2016, the Clty Council adopted Ordinance No. 13389 C.M.S. amendlng Ordinance
No. 13320 C.M.S (the 2015-16 Master Fee Schedule) which resulted in an increase of the RAP
Fee from $30 per unit to $68 per unit. The Agenda Report recommending the. $68 fee included
the following components: a) increased staffmg, b) technology upgrades, c) public education,

~ and d) thlrd party legal services.

On May 8, 2018, the Master Fee Schedule Agenda Report for FY 2018-19 was presented to the
Finance Committee and included ah increased RAP fee in the amount of $96.02. The Finance
Committee directed staff to return on May 22, 2018 with a Supplemental Report

presenting further analysis of the RAP program and what the fee increase would cover.,

On May 22,2018, the Finance Committee moved the item to the May 29, 2018 City Councll
meetlng

On May 29, 2018, the item was continued to June 5, 2018 at which time it was removed from
- the agenda and the Master Fee Schedule was amended without a change to the RAP fee for FY
12018-19. .

Since June 5, 2018, RAP staff has drawn from a one-time fund balance to hire four Limited
Duration Appointment (LDA) positions, of which three have been filled.

ltem:
Finance & Management Committee
March 19, 2019

000052




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase - o _ : S
Date: February 19, 2019 - : L o : ‘ Page 4

ANALYSlS AND POLlCY ALTERNATIVES»

- The analysrs of the proposed fee increase is conducted on two levels: 1) addressing increased
demands on the program which involves: a) backlogs and a lack of timeliness related to
increased volume of petitions and inquiries received, b) the impact of new legislation, and c) the
need for programmatic and systems improvements; and 2) facilitating the shift to an active
enforcement model. The analysis then describes the cost to operate the program at an- optimal
level and presents the: calculatlons that indicate the proposed fee structure needed to cover thls
cost. : .

Alternatives to the proo_o_s‘ed fee increase follow the analys'is' descrlbed‘above.-
: Background | |

Strong rent control and eviction protectlons are essentlal elements of ant| drsplacement policies.
- High rents in Oakland are durectly related to the vast number of Oakland citizens being forced to
move: out of the city or suffering homelessness in'the current housing climate By changing the -
programmatic model from a passive, complaint-driven model to an active enforcement ‘model; -

~ the City will more effectively meet the urgent need to ensure that rents are stable and set at

_ levels compliant with the law, that the public is informed and complying with the law, and that
RAP is fulfillinig its obligations under the Rent Adjustment and Just Cause Ordinances. Studies -
have revealed that cities with active enforcement programs achieve greater compliance and

" reduce the amount of rent overcharges paid by tenants. For example, in 2009, Berkeley and Los
Angeles conducted separate research analyzing their respective programs. Los Angeles, like
Oakland, employed a passive enforcement model whereas Berkeley implements active
enforcement of its ordinance. The research found that 27% of Los Angeles tenants were paying °
5% or more above the legal allowed amount for their unit whereas in Berkeley only 5% were
being overcharged'. _

These studies indicate that actlve enforcement models are not only m_ore effective in- protectmg :
agalnst rent V|olatlons but also in ensurlng compliance with the law.. )

The fee i lncrease from $30 to $68 in 2016 enabled RAP to hire three add|t|onal staff (two
Hearing Officers and one Program Analyst) and to engage in the following actlwtles
. Redesign of RAP website to improve access to information - -
-.®  Creation of a web-based case management system
e Increased scheduling of appeals to four times per month ' ~
¢ Renewed contract with Centro Legal de |la Raza for contlnuatlon of Iegal servuces to low-
- income tenants : ‘

While these efforts were positive steps, progress has been slow an'd incremental.

1 Los Angeles report. Economic Roundtable, Economic Study of the Rent Stabrlrzatlon Ordlnance (RSO)
and the Los Angeles Housing Market, 2009, available at the L.A. Housing Department web site; Berkeley-
report: Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board, Report on the April — May 2009 Survey of Tenants of

. Reglstered Rental Unlts March 15, 2010, available on the Berkeley Rent Stablllzatlon Program web site.

ltem: ‘
Finance & Management Committee
March 19, 2019

000053




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase

Date: February 19, 2019 : A ' Page 5

Level One Analysis: Increased Demands on the Rent Adjustment Program

1.

Increased volume of petitions: Between 2014 and 2017, the number of petitions, -
citations, and Ellis Act filings increased by 33%. While the rate of filings slowed somewhat
in FY 2017-18, the higher level of petitions over that period coupled with inadequate stafﬁng
levels, systems and infrastructure resulted in a significant backlog across the numerous
steps in the process: from intake and data entry to sending notices to all parties to hearings
and through to appeals and citations. Appeals are currently running about 14% of

- appealable decisions, with some involving numerous tenants who may have different issues

at play As such, the appeals can involve varying levels of complexity that impacts the time
to hear and decide on the cases. In order to keep up with appeals, the Rent Board and
Appeal Panels are meetmg weekly.

Due to insufficient staff resources, outdated regulatlons and lack of adequate technology
the ensuing delays include:
* Parties are waiting three to four months before a petltlon is processed,
o Parties are waiting five to six months to have their case heard before a hearing
officer,
» Rendering of hearing decisions range from a low of three months to as much as six
months for more complicated cases.
e Appeals are waiting four to six months to get placed on a Board or Appeal Panel
agenda, with the full life cycle of some appeals running as long as nine to 12 months.

Additionally, the mablllty to conduct work in a timely manher has resdlted in an average of
56 appeals remaining pending at the end of a fiscal year, which then gets compounded by
new appeals belng generated with each new year.

.. New Regulations and Procedures: The following reflects the changes that are placing

additional demands on staff time to set up systems, implement, track, and monitor:

e Measure JJ
o Exterided Just Cause to buildings built before Dec 31, 1995 expandmg the
number of covered units.
o Property owners must petition for rent increases above CPI or bankmg
o Annual notice to tenants and owners
+ Uniform Relocation Ordinance (owner move-in relocation requirement) has created
the need for monitoring and reporting, as well as addressing public inquiries.
o Just Cause Certifications
o Monitoring no-fault evictions
o Certification forms needed '
e Tenant Move Out Agreement Ordinance creates new filings, as well as trackmg and
monitoring responsibilities.
* Measure Y expanded the number of units covered by the Just Cause ordinance.

Item:
Finance & Management Committee
" March 19,2019

000054




Sabrina B. Landreth City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase R , _ ‘ .
Date: February 19, 2019 : o ’ Page 6 -

o The Mandatory Selsmlc Retrofit Ordmance will create an mcrease in capital
~ improvement petitions. 2

3 Programmatlc and Systems Improvements Needed: The new measures outlined above
call for RAP to adopt a more robust programmatic model. Because of limited staffing and .
~ technological resources, RAP has been unable to build out and improve its internal
infrastructure in the following areas: a) operating systems, including compliance, b) public
information and outreach, and 3) data collection and analysis. The following describes each
area, all of which would be addressed through the stafflng and direct costs proposed in the
new fee structure :

a) Operating system wnprovements are needed to reduce paperwork |mprove
timeliness and accuracy, and ensure that staff works at highest and best use levels.
In addition, systems are needed to conduct consistent compliance activities that
~ ensuré the intent of all laws is being met, that all parties are held accountable and
citations and flnes are levied appropnately o S

b) Enhanced outreach educatlon and support to tenants and property ownersis - -
needed to ehsure that the public understands their rights and responsibilities under
" the law, the options available to address issues/problems, and that there are
resources to tap for legal consultation and/or representation. Enhancing these
activities is expected to result in a decrease in petitions, an improvemeént in the -
quality of petitions, and more effective visits at RAP drop-in clinics. These new.
activities (described in detail in Attachment B: Public Informatlon and Qutreach
Plan) would include: " :
i.  Increased drop-in-hours for both tenants and property owners3

~il. - Informational workshops and seminars.

ii.  Updated and more user-frlendly public mformatnon matetials.
“iv..  Enhanced website that it is user-friendly, offers relevant information on key.

-issues and needs; and is regularly updated including provndmg online o
" publication of annual report. . .
v.  Annual notifications to landlords and tenants regardmg rent cellmg
information. :

vi.  Topical informational postcards malled to property owners and tenants
- - regarding their rights and résponsibilities.

vii.  Creating a mediation program and other alternatlve confllct resolutlon .

procedures, : : -

2 In San Francisco, upon lmplementatlon of a mandatory seismic retroftt ordlnance there was a 22%

" increase in capital improvement petitions at the start of the compllance period, and a 43% increase two
_years later when completion dates become due. .

3 RAP has just selected Housing and Economic Rights Advocates (HERA) to admmlster a small property’
‘owner legal seryices, outreach, and public information program. They were selected pursuantto a
Request for Qualifications process conducted in the Fall of 2018 and began work in March 2019

_ ltem:
Flnance & Management Committee
March 19, 2019

”000055‘




Sabrrna B Landreth, City Admlnlstrator
- Subject. RAP Fee Increase

Date: February 19, 2019 . o ' o Page7 .

c) Database and systems |mprovements needed include: .

Building out the database to add features that streamline the processing of
cases, such'as uploading of case documents, enhanced search capabllltles

“and a tickler and notification system.

Improvrng database external-facmg functions to create |mproved lnteractlwty

- and so petitioners have easier access to information,

Creating a client management system to ensure quality and accuracy of

“information provided, enable holistic delivery of services, and track common

issues enhancing data collectlon and inform future public outreach

' campaigns. ,
" ' Creating a system to track and monltor rents, such as a rent reglstry which

will also facilitate RAP’ s tenant notlfrcatlon requirement (noted in3.b.v.
above).
Ensuring data can be delivered easily to the publlc upon request and that

"'data collection facilitates analyses that assist the general public, the Rent

Board, and the City Council in understandlng the impact of RAP, surface
trends and patterns, and mform policy discussions and decrswns

Level Two Analysis Reorganization of Rent Adjustment Program Respons:bllltles to
Facllltate Shift to Active Enforcement -

As noted. above newly adopted rent measures demonstrate a mandate to move toward active
enforcement of the local laws. To accomplish this and to address all of the issues described
above, RAP is reorganizing its activities under the leadershlp of a new Program Manager This :
reorganization creates three divisions within the unit:

The Hearings: Division to address petitions (including eliminating the backtog) elevate
the use of mediation to resolve disputes when possrble and ensure timely rendenng of
decisions. .

~ The Public Information, Outreach and Enforcement Division will carry out the enhanced
activities described above and detailed in Attachment B.
The Administration and Policy Division which will manage the Rent Board, as weII as

oversee data collection and analysis, budget management and other admtntstrattve

carry. out

~ policy, and managenal functions. -

-Table 1 prowdes an overvrew of these leISIOt‘IS and a brief descrlptron of the actlwtles each quI

. ltem: _
Flnance & Management Committee
March 19, 2019

000056




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator -
Subject: RAP Fee Increase

Date: February 19, 2019 ! o : "~ Page8

Table 1. RAP D|V|s|ons and Areas of Activnty

Enforcement

Outreach, and

‘Division Activity Descrlptlon :
Hearings + . Conducts hearings and prepares hearing decrsions
| Division » Conducts mediations of owner/tenant disputes (separate and
independent of the petition process)
» Analyzes and recommends regulatory amendments to Clty Attorney
iR ' based on hearing trends and changes in the law
Public Info, « Delivers informational services to the public through drop- in. clinics

- and responding to phone calls and emails

“events

‘Processes citations for violations of the Rent Adjustment Program

~ Monitors and enforces the Tenant Protectlon Ordinance

-Monitors and enforces the Uniform Relocation Ordinance
. Coordinates with Finance Department s Revenue and Taxation

Prepares, updates, and distributes public information materials
Makes presentations at workshops, seminars, and other public

Attends community-based civic events to answer questlons related
to landlord and tenant issues and to distribute information on RAP
Provides topical informational postcards to owners and tenants
Monitors rent cellrngs and sends annual mailing to owners and
tenants

Ordinance and the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance
Monitors Ellis Act compliance

Monitors. and enforces the Tenhant Move-Out Ordinance

Bureau to-field public inquiries concerning exemptions, fees, and
increases-compliance monitoring

Admin &
Policy

‘Manages database, data collection and analysis
' Manages RAP webpage and prepares annual report

Manages the Rent Board, mcludlng appeals and polrcy matters

Tracking and monitoring of rents and rent mcreases
Administration of contracts, blIIlngs invoicing
Budget management

Coordinates with Revenue and Taxation Division
Coordinates with City Attorney’s Office

+ Program Cost Categories

- The RAP budget has four key cost categories: 1) Stafﬂng, 2) Operations & Mamtenance (O &
M), 3) Third Party Consultants, and 4) Technology. The following section describes each cost

category.

1. Staffing: There are four categorles of staff assigned to RAP work’
a. RAP staff: a unit W|th|n HCD, RAP staff are 100% dedicated to RAP activities,

Item:
Flnance & Management Commlttee

. March 19, 2019

000057




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase ‘ :
Date: February 19, 2019 - , o Page 9

b. HCD staff: a small percentage of FTE provides oversight, support, and hands-on
assistance to the RAP unit. These include the Director, Deputy Director, Fiscal

~Manager, and Business Analyst.

c. City Attorney's Office; Staff from the City Attorney's Office engage dlrectly in
RAP activities including, but not limited to, providing guidance on decisions, -
advusmg on policy matters, supporting the Rent Board, responding to legal

- inquiries from RAP staff, assisting in traming of Board and staff and craftmg
resolutions and policy memos.

d. City staff: The Finance Department's Revenue and Taxation Bureau supports ‘
RAP fee collection and billing for delinquencies, as well as fields questions.
Additionally, Fmance staff provide budget management oversight and assistance,

Table 2 provides a breakdown of the current RAP staff posmons as well as those proposed to -
address the mcreased demands and to meet the pressing needs described earlier in this report.

Table 2. Current and Proposed Staff Positions

Current Proposed Additional |

Personnel . | FTE ' FTE FTE
RAP Staff ' .
Program Manager 1 1 0
Sr. Hearing Officer 1 - 1 0
Hearing Officers 5 6 +1
Program Analysts 6 8 +2
Administrative Assistants 3 5 +2 -
Ass. Program Manager . 0 1 +1
Home Mgmt Specialists 0 2 +2
Legal Admin. Assistants 0 3 +3
Total RAP Staff 16 27 +11

Table 3 describes the activities to be carrled out by the additional proposed staff posmons

" above.

T ftem: __ :
Finance & Management Committee
. March 19, 2019

000058




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator

-Subject: RAP Fee Increase

Page 10

- Date: February 19, 2019

Table 3. Description of Propose_d New Staff Positions

Hearing Officer (1)

.The Hearing Oftrcer will conduct hearings that serve to both
| heard and decisions rendered. They will also make

| geared to help the program run more efficiently and ensure.

reduce backlog and prevent future backlog on cases being
recommendations for regulation and ordinance changes

consrstency in heanng decisions.

Program Analysts (2) . | e Onenew Program Analyst WI|| work on improving and

managing operational systems, database improvements,
- data collection and data analysis for both internal staff uses
- and external purposes, preparing the Annual Report and
‘responding to public information requests. This position will
assist with contract monltonng and supporting the Rent
- Board.
- One new Program Ana|yst wrll work on burldmg out a robust |-
outreach and public information function that will include
* updating public-facing informational materials, creating
monthly fact sheets on topical areas as well as a .
newsletter, utilizing socral media, and coordlnatlng outreach
events :

Home Management
Specialists (2)

| new Public Outreach and Educatlon actIVItles descrrbed in
f Attachment B.

The two new. Home Management Specialists will.carry out the

" Administrative and Legal
.| Assistants ()

) .Three new Legal Administrative Assistants. will be tied to

~ the Hearrngs division and ensure that all of the case file

. paperwork is properly handled, that mailings are conducted
on time, and that parties to petitions.have the information
they need to participate in hearings in an informed manner.

¢ Two new Administrative Assistants will support the .

enforcement activities of the program, assisting with data’
entry and mallrngs associated with tracklng and monltorlng
of rents and rent increases:

Acsistan_t Program
Manager (1)

supervising implementation of the robust public mformatlon and
. outreach and enhanced enforcement activities.

The Assistant Program Manager will assist in the general
management of the program, specifically focused on

‘2. 0 &M: These costs consist of direct administrative costs such as prlntmg, offlce :
supphes postage, equipment, staff training, and facilities. o :

3. Thlrd Party Consultants: Currently there are twovthvlrd party contracts in place:

: Item
Fmance & Management Commlttee
March 19, 2019

-000059




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase = :
Date: February 19, 2019 o - Page 11

-a, Low Income Tenant Legal Services: Currently this contract is held by Centro
Legal de la Raza. These services provide legal consultation and representation
for low-income tenants related to the rent adjustment and tenant protection
ordinances. An RFP will be issued in April 2019 that will revisit the scope for this
work, ensure it is aligned and integrated with the City's anti-displacement
activities, and will create a competitive process for selecting the provider of the
services to ensure the City is getting the best suited and priced service.

b. Small Property Owner Legal Services: A contract for these services was just

- awarded to Housing and Economic Rights Advocates (HERA) pursuant to a
Request for Qualifications process held in the Fall of 2018 and they began work
in March 2019. HERA's scope will include public information and outreach,
education, and one-on-one legal assistance services to small property owners.

4 Technology: The first phase of technology |mprovements were funded with General
Fund resources in the amount of $365,000 and resulted in a baseline case management
system for petitions that needs additional features to enhance its capacity such as the
ability to upload documents to reduce or eliminate the use of paper when filing a petition- .

- and moving through the hearlng and appeal processes and improved search and filtering
functions.

Proposed Budget

The cost to carry out these activities at the optimal level identified above is $8,087,443
for 2019-2020. Table 4 presents the proposed budget.

Table 4._ Proposed Budget for 2019 — 20

'2019 - 20 Proposed
Budget .
Personnel _ :
City ' $ 533,422
HCD (RAP + non—RAP staff) $ 5,429,592
| City Attorney , $ 1,249,429
| O&M and Facilities $ 400,000
Third Party Contracts |$ 400,000
.| Technology* $ 75,000
-TOTAL ' - | '$ 8,087,443

4 The first phase of technology inﬁprovements were funded with an allocation of $365,000 from the
General Fund. - .

ltem;
Finance & Management Commlttee
March 19, 2019

000060




Sabrina B. Landreth; City Administrator

Subject: RAP Fee Increase
. Date; February 19, 2019 -

Page 12

Units Covered and Revenue

The adoption of the $68 fee was based on an estimate of 70,000 rental units covered by both
Rent Adjustment and Just Cause or Just Cause only. Since that time, the passage of Measure
. JJ and Measure Y have added approximately 10,000 covered units for a total of 80,000 units.
Based on the total cost to operate the program described in this report and meet the outcomes
presented, the per unit fee would need to mcrease to $101.00 per umt -

How the Proposed Fee Increase will Impact the Level of Serwce to Oakland Res:dents

and Property Owners

Table 5 provndes an overview of the improvements to the Ievel of service customers WI|| ’
expenence as a result of the fee increase.

. Tab_le'5. Comparlsen of Level of Service by RAP Service Activity

Processmg of petltlons
scheduling hearings and
appeals, and rendermg
decrswns

. Three to four months
before-a petition is
processed

o Five to six months to

" have their case heard
before a hearing officer.

¢ Three months to six

- months for rendering a
hearing decision.

s Four to six months for an
‘appeal to get placed on a

Board or Appeal Panel o

agenda.

|+ Fulllife cycle of some

appeals running nine to
twelve months.

» Hearing decision rendered
- within two months of hearing.

~ reduced to a maximum of four

Processing petitions wuthm
one week of recelpt of
petltlon ‘

Hearings on petition will occur
within two months of filing..

Appeal placed on Board -
Agenda within two months of
the filing of the appeal. *
Appeal decision rendered -
within two months of the filing
of the appeal:

Full life cycle of appeals

months

Outreach and publlc information

' » Semlnars- and workshops

None in 201 8; prlor years
one {o two per year.

Nine to 10-per year

Community outreach
events .

Three:to four per year.

13-14 per year

14 hours Aper week .

30 hours per week

Drop- m hours

ltem:

Fmance &‘ Management Comrmttee

March 19, 2019 ‘

000061




SabrlnaB Landreth City Admnmstrator :
Subject: RAP Fee Increase

Date: February 19, 2019

e
Public information
materials

Updated sporadically, not
user-friendly

‘Cr_eae‘1\ toprcai informatin' o

Guide to Rent Control in

sheets, four informational
postcards mailed to landlords
and tenants, the creation of a

Oakland, update landlord -
information packet, update tenant |
information packet :

Mailingsr

None

-Twice a year to all tenants and

property owners indicating the
unit's lawful rent ceilings.

Legal- services

No landlord services -

'| Adds $50,000 contract for -

landlord legal services -

. Response tlme on publlc
mquirles

Complaints from the public
have referenced calis
unreturned and waiting on
hold for more than five
minutes.

No more than 48 hours. A -
dedicated receptionist will handle
all calls for an immediate initial
response. - '

Mediation Program to
resolve disputes more
quickly

None

20 - 30 per month

Monitoring of. covered
units pertaining to fee
collection, exemptlons
and rental rates

No monitoring of fee

| collection or rental rates.

Exemption inquiries handled
case by case and can take
up to two weeks to resolve -
due to lack of staff.

‘

“Proactive inspections of

.data-on the lawful rent ceiling for

properties claiming an
exemption, monitor and maintain.

all covered units, creation of a
mechanism for tenants to
affirmatively challenge exemptlon
status.

Compliance monitoring

None

Proactive enforcement of citation
violations including board .
initiated compliance hearings.

Collection, analysis and
distribution of data

Limited capacity; on a case- -

by-case basis.

| anti-displacement, and trends in

Generate reports on evictions,

rental rates and compliance.

Alternatives

¢ Reduce number of new staff posmons proposed: The key cost component that

escalates the fee are the additional 11 staff positions identified in Table 3. To lower the
fee, positions could need to be eliminated.. The following are several categorles of fee
increase-funded positions and the impact of eliminating them:
. o Elimination or reduction of administrative support to the Hearings Division would
limit the ability to achieve timeliness in processmg petitions and schedulmg
heanngs and appeals

Item

Flnance & Management Committee

- March 19, 2019

000062




Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase : _ ' _
Date: February 19, 2019 5 : Page 14

o Elimination of a Program Analyst, Assistant Program Manager, and/or the Home

: Management Specialists, would slow.the pace and impact an-enhanced public -
information and outreach model designed to facilitate a reduction in petitions,
improved petition quality, and create a more informed public.

o Elimination of staffing to handle enforcement would dilute efforts to ensure
compliance and maximize fee collection. It would make it difficult to ensure that -
the intent of legislation the Crty Council and the voters approve can be effectlvely

_implemented. v

Retain current fee at $68 Qer unit for all units: By retaining the current fee, the current

. level of service, including the backlogs and delays would remain as status quo..
Incremental improvements would be possible over time; however it could take several
years to see material |mprovements

,PUBLIC OUTREACH

The proposal to increase the RAP fee was discussed with both tenant and property owner ,
stakeholders over the course of one-on-one and group meetlngs in February and March 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT |

Adoption of the Ordrnance presented with this March 19, '2019 Agenda Report to the Finance
and Management Committee will increase the Rent Adjustment Program Fee, generating an
increase in revenue of $2,647,443 which will be used to hire additional staff as described in

" Table 2 and pay for operating expenses, as outlined in Table 4.

COORDINATION

ThIS report was prepared in coordlnatron with the Flnance Department and the City Attorney S
Office.

SUSTAINAB LE OPPORTU NITIES

' Economic: Stable rents and housing stability improve Iow rncome tenants’ economic well-
being. Improved program functloning and increased education on how the laws are

" implemented will facilitate owners" ability to ensure that their property(ies) and future

' mvestments are protected.

Environmental: Improving owners' and tenants’ knowledge of the Rent Adjustment Ordinance
can mitigate adverse environmental impacts resulting from existing rental housing and :
encourage coheeion and vested interest of owners and tenants in established neighborhoods. :

, - ltem: :
Finance & Management Commitiee
March 19, 2019 .

000063




' Sabrina B. Landreth, City Administrator
Subject: RAP Fee Increase R _ . .
Date: February 19, 2019 - . 3 . . Page‘ 15

. Social Equity: Heigntened awareness of the program, edUcation regarding owner and tenant
rights under the program, and improved program performance will ensure that owners’ and
tenants’ rights are protected and that there is equal access to exercising those rights.

_ CTION REQUESTED OF THE CITY COUNCIL

 Staff Recommends That The City Council Approve An Ordinance Amendmg Ordlnance No.
13497 C.M.S. (The 2018-19 Master Fee Schedule) To Increase The Rent Adjustment Program
Service Fee From $68.00 Per Unit To $101. 00 Per Unit. ' _

For questlons regarding this report, please contact Maryann Leshin, Deputy. Director, Housmg :
" and Community Development Department at (510) 238-6225 or Chanee Franklin Minor,
_Manager Rent Adjustment Program at (510) 238 3262.

Respectfully submitted, -

Michele Byrd Director
Housmg and Community Development Department

~ Attachments (2‘)'

~ A: Progress in Addressing RAP Audit Findings
- B: Public Information and Outreach Plan

- ltem: _
Finance & Management Committee
March 19,2019

000064




Attachment A: Status of RAP Audit Findings

Audit Findings

Current Audit Standing and Action
Plan \

Fee Increase Impact

1 .

Increase the number of Rent Board
alternates to provide sufficient
volunteer Board members. '
Attendance records should be
provided to the Mayor on a
semiannual basis.

-1 Closed.

N/A

2 Board Training;

Develop a training program that
extends over the course of a year,
with sessions held during Board
meetings. '

Track progress and send information
on attendance to Mayor

Open.

The following, should be completed

by May/June 2019:

¢ Board manual

¢ Training modules and
schedule

* Re-establishment of Board
Policy Committee

Fee increase would fund staff
positions to carry out these activities
on an ongaing basis.

3 Develop a Communication Strategy for
accessing Rent Board materials online
for differing users.

Packets should be scanned an
uploaded to website.
Provide interested parties with

‘information in advance of the
‘meeting. '

Open. .

The scaling back of mailed packets
by May/June 2019. :

Explore use of new techn_ology (ie:A
tablets). . .

Can take place with current fee.

4 Case & Appeal Decisions should be
posted on website and/or electronic
portal, .

Closed.

000065




" Attachment A: Status of 'RAP.'Audit.Findings

Audit Findings i

’ ‘Current Audlt Standmg and Action

Plan

Fee Increase Impact

Address resource needs through
temporary staffing and planning for new
permanent ‘positions. -

» Review workflow processes for

efficiencies; update policies. and .

procedures
¢ Determine appropnate stafﬂng
- levels
e Implement a formal and routlne
quality assurance program.
¢ Hearing Officers should not
conduct onsite mspectlons or
- - properties.
« - Work with City Attorney’s Office
- to propose.changes to RAP -

Ordinance to create efficiencies.

Open.

The following should be pursued:

* ‘Improved case management .

"~ system :

e _ Streamlining procedures
Increase use of mediation
Analyze staffing needs and -
propose fee increase
accordmgly

Fee increase will cover the cost of
enhanced case management
system, staff to revise/update
procedures; implement a robust
mediation program,

This Agenda Report presents the _
results of staff’s analysis of staffmg :
needs. .

Improve case management system; track

cases, store records electronically (to
‘reduce paperwork), produce
performance metrics and-trend analysis,
and facilitate regular reporting on RAP

.| -activities.’

Open.

Daiabase improvements needed,
including rent tracking.

Fee increase would cover ongoing

database maijntenarnce along with the-

staff time to set up and manage the
systems that will facilitate smoother
operations, reduction of paperwork, -
generation of performance metrics
data/policy analyses, and regular and
timely reporting.

000066



Attachment A: Status of RAP Audit Findings )

Audit Findings Current Audit Standing and Action | Fee Increase Impact
: Plan . - )
7 Formulate a public outreach and Open, Fee increase would cover staff time
communication plan. _— : : _ to create these materials, update -
. Initiation of Communication and them on an ongoing basis, and
Outreach Plan (see Attachment B) implement the Communication and
and preparation of public information | Outreach Plan. It would also cover
materials by March 2019, " | cost of printing and mailings.
8 Design dedicated, professional space for Open. Staff propose to use RAP fund
hearing and other public:RAP business : balance of approximately $1,000,000
Implementation has been held up by | to fund the implementation of space
lack of budget authority to carry out. | improvements called for in this audit
B Timing for addressing TBD. funding. L
9 Validate that all covered properties are Closed.
being assessed..
10 | Develop and monitor the RAP budget Open. This is being carried out with current
) : fee.
Preparation of Annual Report and
RAP budget analysis by March 2019.
